Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107-117 Botchergate 
Carlisle  CA1 1RD 
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

To:

The Chair and Members of the Scrutiny
Advisory Board - Communities and Place

Agenda
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
A meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place will be held as follows:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Thursday 12 March 2020
10.00 am
Committee Room 1 - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services.

NB

A PRE-MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 9.30 AM IN COMMITTEE
ROOM 1 AND ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Lorraine Davis
Direct Line:
07929164805
Email:
lorraine.davis@cumbria.gov.uk
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

MEMBERSHIP
Labour Members (4)

Conservative Members (6)

Mr F Cassidy
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr W McEwan
Mrs H Wall

Mr D English
Mr D Gawne
Mr A Kennon
Mr J Lister (Vice-Chair)
Mr AJ Markley
Mr D Wilson

Liberal Democrat Members (2)

West Cumbria Independent Member (1)

Mr SB Collins (Chair)
Mr N Hughes

Mrs M Rae

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Agenda and Reports
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect
prior to the meeting. Copies will also be available at the meeting.
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/
Background Papers
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

AGENDA
PART 1:

1

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
2

MEMBERSHIP

To note any changes in membership of the Board.
3

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item
on the agenda which comprises:1

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

2

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

3

Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have
a beneficial interest) and the authority
(a)

Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b)

Which has not been fully discharged.

4

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
the authority for a month or longer.

6

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge).

7

(a)

The landlord is the authority; and

(b)

The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a)

That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of
the authority; and

(b)

Either –
(i)

The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii)

If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of
Conduct where these have not already been registered.
Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil
partners).
4

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item on the agenda.
5

MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 25
November 2019 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 7 - 12)
6

FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE INSPECTION OUTCOME AND IMPROVEMENT
PLAN

To consider a report by the Chief Fire Officer (copy enclosed).
(Pages 13 - 32)
7

HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

To consider a report by the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure (copy
enclosed).
(Pages 33 - 80)

8

IMPLEMENTATION OF HIGHWAYS PERMIT SCHEME

To consider a report by the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure (copy
enclosed).
(Pages 81 - 86)
9

SCOPE FOR TASK AND FINISH GROUP

To consider a report by the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community
Services (copy enclosed).
(Pages 87 - 90)
10

BOARD BRIEFING

To consider a report by the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community
Services (copy enclosed).
This report informs members of new and updated items of significance to the Board
(including relevant aspects of the Council’s Forward Plan and Key Decisions).
(Pages 91 - 134)
11

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Board will be held on 12 June 2020 at 10.00 am in
Cumbria House, Carlisle.
PART 2: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC
12

PREVENT

To consider a report the Chief Fire Officer (copy enclosed for Members only).
(Pages 135 - 146)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD - COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
Minutes of a Meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board - Communities and Place held
on Monday, 25 November 2019 at 10.00 am at Conference Room A and B, Cumbria
House, Carlisle
PRESENT:
Mr SB Collins (Chair)
Mr D English
Mr D Gawne
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr A Kennon

Mrs M Rae
Mrs H Wall
Mr D Wilson
Mr CP Turner

Also in Attendance:Mr J Beard
Mr A Brown
Mrs L Davis
Mr S Hall
Mr P Greenup
Mr S Higgins
Ms C Killeen
Mr J Rasbash

-

Assistant Chief Fire Officer
Senior Manager - Asset Infrastructure and Transport
Democratic Services Officer
Acting Assistant Director - Economy & Environment
Acting Assistant Director for Highways and Transport
Assistant Director - Customer and Community Services
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
23

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr F Cassidy, Mr N Hughes, Mr J Lister
and Mr W McEwan.
24

MEMBERSHIP

Mr P Turner was substituting for Mr J Lister for this meeting only.
25

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest at the meeting.
26

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Chair confirmed that there were no items on the agenda for which the press
and public should be excluded.

7

27

MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2019 be agreed
as a correct record.
28

EQUALITY OBJECTIVES

Members received a report from the Assistant Director – Customer and Community
Services and the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor providing an update on
progress on implementing the three recommendations from the Task and Finish
Group on Equality Objectives. All public bodies had a requirement to set four yearly
Equality Objectives which were to eliminate discrimination, harassment,
victimisation, advance equality of opportunities and foster good relations between
persons who shared a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it.
The Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor outlined the action taken to date on the
Task and Finish Group’s three recommendations. A county wide Equality Action
plan setting out how the objectives were to be met had been developed and was
appended to the report. The Equality Needs Analysis was a data set providing
information on services and employment relating to people who shared a protected
characteristic and work was underway to complete the 2020 Analysis which would
inform the 2020-2024 Equality Objectives and a revised Equality Plan. The suite of
local Equality profiles had been produced for local committees and published on the
Council’s website. Carlisle District’s Equality profile was also appended to the
report as an example of the information available.
Members discussed the progress of the objectives in the Action Plan. The officer
confirmed that eighteen out of the twenty two objectives were on track, with work on
the other four being progressed. Members were informed that staff focus groups
were in place and could assist in the measurement of the effectiveness of the
policies. The VIP appraisal system would also help in the measurement of the
effectiveness of the policies.
The SEND figures in the Equality Profile were discussed. The Strategic Policy and
Scrutiny Advisor advised members that following the Ofsted inspection a SEND
Action Plan and a Task and Finish Group would focus on this issue. The lack of
diversity in some schools, tackling childhood obesity, the variance in the SEND
figures in each of the districts and issues faced by small rural schools were
discussed. Members requested a report on local Equality Objectives be prepared
for each local committee.
In discussion of the neurodiversity guidance appended to the report, other hidden
disabilities such as colour blindness, hearing loss and prosopagnosia, also known
as face blindness were mentioned for inclusion. The difficulties with non-diagnosis
was highlighted.
RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

8

29

RURAL STRATEGY AND LOBBYING - NATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS AND
LOCAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Assistant Director - Economy & Environment (the officer) gave a presentation
on Lobbying on Rural Matters. Members heard that rural areas were reporting a
disproportionate impact of budget cuts and were experiencing worse outcomes in a
range of areas such as education, transport and accessing healthcare. This had
resulted in calls on Government to produce a strategy to address challenges rural
areas faced. The officer explained that the call for a rural strategy had been rejected
by Government but Local Industrial Strategies were promoted as the vehicles for
rural economic growth.
The officer informed members of two organisations, both of which the county council
was a member of, which were acting as voices for rural issues; Rural Services
Network (RSN) and Britain’s Leading Edge. A summary of the RSN’s response to
Government in relation to the House of Lord’s Select Committee Inquiry on the
Rural Economy was included in the report, together with the ambitions of Britain’s
Leading Edge, a collaboration of 12 upper tier rural authorities. The council was
working in collaboration with the Cumbria LEP and the District/Borough Councils to
bid for other government funding streams such as Future High Street Funding and
Borderlands.
Members discussed issues faced by rural communities such as digital connectivity.
The officer agreed to investigate and report direct to the Chair on whether
broadband service providers were being lobbied to co-locate on masts for general
use. The aspirations for economic growth whilst preserving the area’s natural
environment, retention of young people to live and work in Cumbria, the housing
market, the super ageing population and the county’s transport infrastructure were
also discussed. The importance of having a strong creative culture for towns was
also highlighted.
RESOLVED, that the presentation be noted.
30

APPROACH TO DEVELOPING AND MANAGING SECTION 38 AND 278
AGREEMENTS

Members received a presentation from the Senior Manager - Asset Infrastructure
and Transport (the officer) on Section 279 and Section 38 Agreements.
The officer informed members that the Council as the Highways Authority had a
duty under the Highways Act 1980 to consider and adopt new developments as part
of the highways it maintained. Members noted that Section 38 allowed the Council
to charge fees to inspect new roads being built which would later be adopted by the
Council. Section 278 allowed the Council to charge fees where an existing highway
was altered or improved to allow access to a new development.

9

Members were informed that there was a dedicated resource available for the
engagement with developers and progressing legal agreements and fees for
S278/S38’s. An internal audit had taken place and revised service procedures had
been introduced in April 2017. Regular management meetings monitored progress
and the agreements were updated/monitored against agreed income targets.
Members noted that a new permit system had also been introduced for street works.
Members expressed concerns about planning applications having a major impact on
the road network and other community resources such as school places. Problems
encountered at Barrow and High Harrington were discussed at the meeting. The
Assistant Director - Economy & Environment explained Section 106 agreements
could cover significant impacts on the local area but acknowledged the challenges
the council faced. The County Council was only a consultee on planning
applications, and the final agreement of planning conditions and approval was the
responsibility of the District/Borough/National Park planning authority.
The officer confirmed to members that dropped curbs were now included in section
agreements as it formed part of the new Cumbria Development Design Guide. He
agreed to circulate the link to this document to members and further agreed to
check the minimum threshold amount that the council could request for a Section
278 agreement. In discussion of retrospective financial claims from the developer,
the bond process was explained. Bonds were held by the council until the work was
completed to a satisfactory standard, and if not, the bond would be used to bring the
work up to that standard.
Members felt that a Task and Finish Group should be established to review the
council’s effectiveness of approach to securing planning section agreements and
responding to development.
RESOLVED, that
(1) the presentation be noted;
(2) a scope for a Task and Finish Group be developed for the March meeting
of the Board, before being submitted to Scrutiny Management Board for
approval.
31

RAPID RESPONSE VEHICLES - EVALUATION REPORT

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer presented a report on the outcome of the six month
pilot of Rapid Response Vehicles (RRV) in Arnside and Staveley.
The Deputy Chief Fire Officer explained that as part of the new Integrated Risk
Management Plan (IRMP) 2019-23 full Council committed to consideration of
replacing large fire engines at Arnside, Staveley and Frizington, and the second fire
engine at Maryport, with RRVs that were more suitable to the risk, demand and
geography of the county.

10

Members heard that a pilot scheme had been conducted at Arnside and Staveley
between April 2019 and October 2019 and the evaluation report was appended to
the report.
In conclusion, the Deputy Chief Fire Officer said that the pilot had delivered against
its objectives, demonstrated increased efficiency and effectiveness in terms of
responding to communities where they had been operating. The Fire Service was
now developing a plan to rollout RRVs to other stations identified in the IRMP.
The discussion centred around Local Committee engagement before the roll out of
further RRVs and winter maintenance and storage of the vehicles. The Deputy
Chief Fire Officer confirmed to the Chair that the call out figures took into account
standby duties at Kendal. It was agreed that, as the evaluation report was a public
document, this could be circulated to parish council in preparation of further roll
outs. Members were informed that the use of the RRVs had shown nationally to
help with staff retention and recruitment and allowed a better work life balance.
RESOLVED, that the report be noted.
32

BOARD BRIEFING

A report was received by members on the Board’s current work programme,
together with the current Forward Plan of decisions.
Members were asked to consider the Board’s work programme as set out in
paragraph 4.1 of the report and consider the Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1
December 2019 – 31 January 2020.
Members discussed future items for the Board’s work programme. The member for
Millom asked for an item on Haverigg Prison and the community after the prison had
been changed from a category C to a category D prison. Racial abuse was also
mentioned as a potential issue for further exploration. The Chair requested an item
on Cumbria’s Highways Asset Management Strategy 2020 - 2025. Members were
asked to submit further items for the work programme to the Strategic Policy and
Scrutiny Advisor.
RESOLVED, that the report be noted.
33

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Advisory Board – Communities
and Place will be held on Thursday 12 March 2019 at 10 am at County Offices,
Kendal.

The meeting ended at 12.40 pm

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD – COMMUNITIES
AND PLACE
Meeting date: 12 March 2020
From:

Deputy Chief Fire Officer John Beard

Fire and Rescue Service Inspection Outcome and
Improvement Plan
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report and accompanying presentation provides an update to Scrutiny
on the outcome of the Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire
and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) inspection of Cumbria Fire and Rescue
Service in 2019 and the improvement work underway to address the areas
highlighted by the inspectors.

1.2

The report also provides an update on the national context following the
publication of the ‘State of Fire and Rescue: The Annual Assessment of Fire
and Rescue Services in England 2019’ by Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of
Fire & Rescue Services.

2.0

Issues for Scrutiny

2.1

Scrutiny Members are asked to consider the update, any issues raised and
areas that Scrutiny may wish to review further ahead of the next inspection.

3.0

Background

HMICFRS Inspection
3.1

In 2018/19 HMICFRS completed their first full assessment of all 45 fire and
rescue services for more than a decade. Cumbria was in the third tranche of
the services and was inspected in June 2019.

3.2

The inspection framework looked at three areas:

3.3

How effective is the fire and rescue service at keeping people safe and
secure from fire and other risks?
How well the fire and rescue service understands its current and future risks,
works to prevent fires and other risks, protects the public through the
regulation of fire safety, responds to fires and other emergencies, and
responds to national risks.

13

3.4

How efficient is the fire and rescue service at keeping people safe and
secure from fire and other risks?
How well the fire and rescue service uses its resources to manage risk, and
secures an affordable way of providing its service, now and in the future.

3.5

How well does the fire and rescue service look after its people?
How well the fire and rescue service promotes its values and culture, trains
its staff and ensures that they have the necessary skills, ensures fairness
and diversity for its workforce, and develops leaders.

3.6

Cumbria’s report was published on 19 December 2019 and the Service
received the following gradings:

3.7

Effectiveness

Good

Efficiency

Good

People

Requires Improvement

HMICFRS also identified 13 ‘Areas for Improvement’. These are listed in full
at Appendix A.

Improvement Activity
3.8

Following the initial feedback from HMICFRS immediately after the
inspection the Service developed an improvement plan. The broad plan
covered areas that both HMICFRS highlighted and areas the Service
identified through the preparation for the inspection. This preparation was
supported by the Scrutiny Task & Finish Group.

3.9

This was reviewed once the Service had sight of the draft report and again
when the final report was published to ensure that all the areas for
improvement identified were incorporated.

3.10

The Areas for Improvement are being monitored through the Service’s
Strategic Leadership Team and the broader activity through the Service’s
Programme Board. A focus of the next round of inspections will be on what
services have done to address the areas for improvement and work is
ongoing to ensure the Service can evidence that when the next inspection
takes place in April 2020.

National Context
3.11

At the end of each set of 15 inspections, HMICFRS published a summary
report of themes emerging from the inspections. At the end of all 45
inspections Sir Thomas P Winsor, by Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Fire &
Rescue Services published a report to the Secretary of State containing his
assessment of the effectiveness and efficiency of services in England.

14

3.12

The report identifies a range of themes and makes four recommendations.
These are covered in the presentation at Appendix B. There has been no
announcements about the possible implementation of these
recommendations.

Jo Richardson
Business Manager
2 March 2020

Please ensure that every part of this section where there is an asterisk* is completed in
accordance with the instructions before sending the report to Legal and Democratic Services,
(please delete this sentence, prior to release).

Appendices
Appendix A – Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service Areas for Improvement
Appendix B – Powerpoint presentation
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions
Background Papers
SAB Communities and Place – Fire and Rescue Service Inspection Preparation
Scrutiny Working Group – 15 March 2019
Contact: Jo Richardson, jo.richardson@cumbria.gov.uk or 07795 334838

15

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
HMICFRS Areas for Improvement
1.

The Service should evaluate its prevention work, so it understands the
benefits better.

2.

The Service should ensure staff understand how to identify vulnerability and
safeguard vulnerable people

3.

The Service should ensure it has effective arrangements for providing
specialist protection advice out of hours.

4.

The Service should ensure it works with local businesses and large
organisations to share information and expectations on compliance with fire
safety regulations.

5.

The Service should improve the way it evaluates and shares learning from
operational performance.

6.

The Service should ensure it is well-prepared to form part of a multi-agency
response to an incident. Staff should know how to apply JESIP.

7.

The Service should ensure its operational staff have good access to relevant
and up-to-date risk information. This should include cross-border risk
information.

8.

The Service should have effective means to monitor the working hours of its
staff.

9.

The service should make sure its values and behaviours are understood and
demonstrated by all staff.

10. The service should improve workforce planning to mitigate future skills gap.
11. Address the high number of staff in temporary promotion positions
12. Identify and tackle barriers to equality of opportunity, and make its workforce
more representative, the service should make sure diversity and inclusion
are well understood and become important values of the service
13. Develop system to support and develop high potential individuals

17

This page is intentionally left blank

Scrutiny Advisory Board –
Communities and Place

19

CFRS Inspection
Outcome and
Improvement Plan
12 March 2020

Introduction
•

Cumbria Fire and Rescue was inspected by HMICFRS in June 2019

•

Report was published in December 2019

•

Improvement plan developed – areas for improvement identified by
HMICFRS, other feedback and wider learning

•

Chief Inspector published ‘State of the Nation’ report following
inspections of all 45 services in England

20

Overview

21

•

8 out of 11 areas are
‘good’ and 3 ‘require
improvement’

•

13 specific ‘areas for
Improvement’
highlighted. No ‘areas for
concern’ that would
warrant further action
from HMI outside the
normal inspection
programme.

Effective
•

•

•

22
•

Risk - Clear link between strategic
priorities and prioritisation of resources positive IRMP & RBEP

Effectiveness

Good

Understanding the risk of fire and
other emergencies

Good

Prevention – activity is embedded –
positive examples around campaigns
(double national average Safe & Well visits
per head of population)

Preventing fires and other risks

Good

Protecting the public through fire
and other regulation

Good

Responding to fires and other
emergencies

Good

Protection – positive about new inspection
programme and our capacity to deliver (4x
national average no. audits of known risk).
Experienced / knowledgeable staff

Responding to national risks

Good

Response – in the main, meeting response
standards – positive about innovative duty
systems and vehicles.

•

National risks – positive re
responding to national
incidents, LRF arrangements
and learning

Improvement Activity

23

•

Evaluation of prevention activity – reviewing current process until
national framework developed

•

Safeguarding – new training framework agreed and to be rolled out
across the service

•

Fire protection – review of arrangements and up-skilling managers

•

Engagement with businesses - engagement sessions and events with
local businesses targeted at associated risk

•

Learning from operational performance – root and branch review

•

Embedding JESIP (multi-agency joint working principles) – review of
implementation and training programme

•

Cross-border risk information - improve tracking and assurance
process

Efficient
•

•

Resources appropriately aligned and
duty systems in place to meet
demand – recognition around
exploring new duty systems
Fleet aligned to local risk to reduce
cost – innovation in RRVs

24

•

Exploring crewing at 3 – On-call
availability good but reducing

•

Strong track record of making
efficiency savings

Efficient

Good

Making the best use of resources

Good

Making the fire and rescue
service affordable now and in the
future

Good

Improvement Activity
Whilst there were no identified areas for improvement activity is
underway to look at:
• Improving systems and processes to ensure we are as efficient as
possible
• Root and branch review of stores and asset management
25

• Working with corporately delivered functions to clarify needs and costs
to identify gaps and ensure they are supporting the service

People
•

•
•

Value mental health arrangements and
support and critical incident debrief
arrangements
Core training arrangements robust –
risk critical is prioritised

26

Successful female recruitment but
improvements needed to ensure voice
of under-represented staff groups is
encouraged/heard

People

Requires
improveme
nt

Promoting the right values and
culture

Requires
improvement

Getting the right people with
the right skills

Good

Ensuring fairness and
promoting diversity

Requires
improvement

Managing performance and
developing leaders

Requires
improvement

Improvement Activity
Monitor working hours – policy framework and monitoring tools

•

Values and behaviours (culture) – engagement with staff to shape
programme, learning from others and links with wider CCC
transformation programme

•

Workforce planning – Board established, developing academy model,
apprenticeships, succession plan, development programme

•

Temporary promotion – this has been addressed through completion
of reshapings and recruitment processes

•

Equality and diversity – staff group(s) and engagement, review of EDI
board and strategy, review of selection process and increased
positive action

•

Developing high potential staff – development scheme

27

•

National Context
28

HMICFRS State of the Nation
First assessment of the effectiveness and efficiency of the fire and
rescue sector in England

•

Based on first round of inspections in 2018 and 2019

•

Four recommendations to the sector

•

A sector with many strengths – focus on protecting the communities
we serve, highly skilled response, continually improving working
practices

•

Recognition of the change in demand and contribution and breadth of
prevention work

•

Improvement is needed – sector needs reform

29

•

Recommendations
1. Setting expectations to create modern fire and rescue services fit
for the future
By June 2020, the Home Office, in consultation with the fire and rescue
sector, should review and with precision determine the roles of: (a) fire
and recue services; and (b) those who work for them.

30

2. Potential reform of employment arrangements
By June 2020, the Home Office, the LGA, the NFCC and trade unions
should consider whether the current pay negotiation machinery requires
fundamental reform. If so, this should include the need for an
independent pay review body and the future of the ‘grey book’.

Recommendations
3. Operational Independence for CFOs

31

By September 2020, the Home Office should consider the case for
legislating to give CFOs operational independence. In the meantime, it
should issue clear guidance, possibly through an amendment to the Fire
and Rescue National Framework for England, on the demarcation
between those responsible for governance and operational decision
making by CFO.
4. A code of ethics for fire and rescues services
By December 2020, the NFCC, with the LGA, should produce a code of
ethics for fire and rescue services. The code should be adopted by every
service in England and considered as part of each employee’s
progression and annual performance appraisal.

Looking ahead

32

•

Next cycle of inspections to begin 2020 – Cumbria dates confirmed
for March and April 2021

•

Same questions to build a comprehensive set of benchmarks –
changes in judgement criteria

•

New arrangements to monitor progress of FRSs against identified
areas for improvement

•

Devise methodology for HMICFRS to inspect fire and rescue
authorities

Agenda Item 7
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD – COMMUNITIES
AND PLACE
Meeting date:
From:

12 March 2020

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents details of the refreshed Highway Asset
Management Strategy which includes a copy of the Delivery Plan that
supports the Strategy. This has built on the current approved Strategy
agreed by Cabinet in November 2015 and has been updated to include
the adoption of the Well Managed Highway Infrastructure: A Code of
Good Practice.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The refreshed Highway Asset Management Strategy builds on the
Council Plan and covers the key themes of

2.2



Customers: Putting our Customers at the heart of everything we
do.



Working Together: Working with partner organisations and
communities to achieve shared aspirations.



Enterprise and Efficiency: Exploring new ways to deliver services
and maximise our resources.



Prevention and Early Intervention: Acting early to achieve better
outcomes.



Digital Transformation: Giving our customers choice and easy
access to online services.

There are no equality implications for this report.

33

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To note the process for refreshing the Highway Asset Management
Strategy.

3.2

To note the Delivery Plan that has been developed in support of the
refreshed Highway Asset Management Strategy.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

National guidance on highway maintenance recommends following an
infrastructure asset management approach. This approach gives regard to
the range of assets involved, the different maintenance life-cycles and the
limited resources available to assist in developing an investment plan that
maximises the impact of the budgets whilst ensuring the asset is in the best
condition.

4.2

The County Council has progressed an asset management approach, and in
2015 developed the first Highways Asset Management Strategy which was
approved by Cabinet on 26 November 2015. This document set out our
approach to Asset Management and created the foundation for the Incentive
Fund Self-Assessment as a Band 3.

4.3

In refreshing this Strategy the focus has been to align to the Council Plan,
embrace the challenges faced by the highway network and incorporate
current national guidance.

4.4

Cabinet will be considering a report in April prior to confirming the adoption
of this refreshed Highway Asset Management Strategy. Appended to this
report is a copy of the Delivery Plan that supports the refreshed Highway
Asset Management Strategy.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

To note the process around the refreshing of the Highway Asset
Management Strategy.

5.2

To make comment on the Delivery Plan that supports the Strategy.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications arising from the
recommendations in section three of this report.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are no legal implications.

34

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

Cabinet will be considering the Refreshed Highway Asset Management
Strategy in April with the supporting Delivery Plan. Members are invited to
comment on the Delivery Plan.

Angela Jones
Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure.
February 2020

Please ensure that every part of this section where there is an asterisk* is completed in
accordance with the instructions before sending the report to Democratic Services, following
which please delete this sentence.

APPENDICES
Draft Highway Asset Management Stratgy
Delivery Plan in support of the Refreshed Highway Asset Management
Strategy
Electoral Division(s):

All
* Please remove whichever option is not applicable

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

35

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
Cabinet – Approval of Highways Asset Management Strategy 26/11/2015.
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
Highways Asset Management Strategy 2015
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:
103594

Nick Raymond nick.raymond nick.raymond@cumbria.gov.uk 07825

36

Cumbria County Council

2020 2025

g

n
bei

re
a
cs am
i
h
te
ap
r
s
g
m
o
f
m
n
i
o
C
s/
o
e
t
h
o
t
h
y
p
b
d
All
e
c
la
p
e
r

Serving the people of Cumbria
37

cumbria.gov.uk

Cumbria County Council

Contents

1. Foreword................................................................................................................................................... 3
2. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 4
3. Highway Asset Management Policy .........................................................................................................5
4. Our Strategy – The framework for asset management.............................................................................7
5. Where we are now .................................................................................................................................. 10
6. Where we are going................................................................................................................................ 13
7. Our approach to meeting our objectives .................................................................................................22
8. Climate Change ...................................................................................................................................... 23
9. Data Management .................................................................................................................................. 24
10. Lifecycle Planning ................................................................................................................................. 25
11. Best Practice and Performance Monitoring ..........................................................................................26
12. Delivering the strategy .......................................................................................................................... 27
13. Our measures of success .....................................................................................................................28

38

Cumbria County Council

1. Foreword
Highways are essential to people’s daily lives and local businesses, especially in a rural county
such as Cumbria where there are limited alternative options for travel and a high dependency on
road journeys. We recognise the significance of roads in keeping people and places connected,
which supports our communities to thrive; be healthy and safe; ensures places are well
connected and has an economy that continues to grow and benefits everyone.
With the fourth largest road network in the country, Cumbria County Council has a significant job
on its hands to make sure the highway asset is well managed, and to ensure the network
operates efficiently.
The County Council recognises the need to manage the asset well and has adopted the best
practice guidelines of the Well Managed Highway Infrastructure: A Code of Practice and the
Highway Maintenance Efficiency Programme to ensure we maximise the impact of the limited
resources available.
The Highways network in Cumbria is an ageing asset and it has been affected by recent extreme
weather events, which are becoming more regular. Maintaining this asset to the standards
expected within the resources available will always remain a challenge.
This Strategy will put customers at the heart of everything we do in providing a high quality
highways service and well-managed asset that meets the needs of our customers. However, we
recognise it will require new approaches if the council is to succeed in this.
This Highway Asset Management Strategy sets out how we will do this in a strategic and efficient
way and I look forward to its implementation that will lead to improved highways for Cumbria and
most importantly improved outcomes for the customers.

Keith Little, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

39

Cumbria County Council

2. Introduction
Cumbria County Council has the fourth largest highway network in England with over 7,900km of
carriageway and an estimated value of £7.2 billion.
The county’s highway network is a significant asset that connects people and places across
Cumbria contributing to the wellbeing of residents, thriving communities and enabling people to
access work, learning and business opportunities to fulfil their ambitions. The Council will
maintain the county’s highway network to the best possible standard within the available
resources while continuing to pursue all the opportunities we can to secure additional funding for
the maintenance and improvement of our highways and transport infrastructure.
Available funds, especially revenue funding, is reducing year on year; therefore, it is now more
important than ever to optimise our resources to get maximum value from the highway asset.
The Highway Asset Management Strategy is aligned to support the aspirations of the Council
Plan and clearly set out our standards and levels of service for the highways infrastructure
assets. The previous strategy was approved in 2015, which set out both the Council’s Policy
position and our strategy for Highway Asset Management. This strategy, which has been shaped
by stakeholder and customer priorities, will support delivery of the Council Plan and further
develop our asset management approach in line with the Well-Managed Highway Infrastructure:
A Code of Practice (The Code). This adopts a risk-based approach to highway infrastructure
maintenance and has been used as the framework to provide the direction of travel for
improvement in the service.
Our asset led approach intends to assist us to deliver a more efficient and effective approach to
management of highway infrastructure assets through longer term planning and ensuring that
levels of service are defined and achievable within available budgets. We put our customers at
the heart of our strategy to ensure the highway infrastructure is maintained to provide the best
service to the people of Cumbria.

40

Cumbria County Council

3. Highway Asset Management Policy
The Highway Asset Management Policy statement supports the Council
Plan, which sets out our commitment to improving the lives of the people of
Cumbria. To achieve this will require us to adopt new ways of working:

The Council Plan describes the Council’s vision and aspirations for the county and the overall
approach we will take to deliver these aspirations. We cannot achieve our aspirations for the
people and places of Cumbria on our own so we are committed to working in partnership with
other organisations and with communities to achieve the objectives we share. This is set around
the framework of outcomes for the people of Cumbria; new ways of working and underlying core
principles.
The Council Plan Vision is:

Maintaining the Council’s roads to the best possible standard within the available resources is a
focus of activity for the Council towards achieving our Council Plan outcomes. As a highway
authority, Cumbria County Council has a statutory duty to maintain, operate and improve the
highway network on behalf of all its customers. We do this by providing services in a sustainable
way; that meet statutory requirements without compromising the health and safety of our staff or
customers.
Our vision for our highways service is to provide:
‘A customer focussed, resilient and cost effective service that delivers a safe and well
managed highways asset ’

41

Cumbria County Council

This will be achieved by supporting the key outcomes of the Council Plan:
People in Cumbria are healthy and safe: The highway network contributes to ensuring people
are healthy and safe by ensuring everyone can safely use the network. The network is used by a
diverse range of transport modes to build, support and maintain people’s health through walking,
cycling, low carbon emission transport, public transport and personal transport.
Places in Cumbria are well-connected and thriving: Being a predominantly rural county the
highway network provides the physical means to connect places in Cumbria, promote business
and economic growth and support communities to thrive.
The economy in Cumbria is growing and benefits everyone: The highway asset is key to
supporting the economy in Cumbria to sustain and grow by providing and managing the key
transport corridors that enable economic activity.
We have also embraced The Code by reviewing our progress and embedding the 36
recommendations. The detail of this is outlined in the Highway Asset Management Plan (HAMP).

42

Cumbria County Council

4. Our Strategy – The framework for asset management
National guidance on Highways Infrastructure Asset Management sets out a framework which
describes all asset management activities and processes that are necessary to develop,
document, implement and continually improve asset management practices.
In support of this Strategy there is a suite of documents that is outlined in Table 1, below,
including:



Highways Delivery Plan that provides the top-level key deliverables and measures of
success.
Highways Asset Management Plan that includs policies and guidance, service standards
and levels of intervention in respect to the Council’s legal requirements and its service
provision.

Strategic Context

Our Asset Management framework demonstrates how asset management links to our broad
organisational context and strategic direction of travel, all the way through to frontline delivery of
services.

Asset Management Planning

Strategic Asset Management Planning



Asset Management Policy including principles and vision
Asset Management Strategy including long-term approach, key objectives
and outcomes, performance reviews and service standards.
 Highways Delivery Plan that provides the top-level key deliverables and
measures of success.
 Highways Asset Management Plan including service standards and levels
of intervention
Tactical Asset Management Planning






Road hierarchy based upon usage and specific local factors
Lifecycle planning – undertake analysis to secure additional funding for all
major assets
Works programmes developed in line with approved prioritisation process
Asset data information – date collection of all major assets which will
include street lighting, carriageways, drainage and footways.
Service Standards – reviewing and setting consistent service standards
and priorities

43

Cumbria County Council

Implementation and Delivery

Asset Management Enablers



Leadership & Commitment
Performance Monitoring which will include benchmarking, performance
review and continuous improvements
 Resourcing to include different delivery models
 Risk Management
 Funding (Revenue, Transport Capital, DfT Challenge, etc)
 Enterprise
 Innovation
 Climate Change
Operations and Service Delivery







Routine and Planned Maintenance
Capital Maintenance Schemes
Winter Maintenance Plan
Service Procedures
Works Instructions
Safety and Condition Inspections

Table 1 – Cumbria County Council’s Highways Asset Management Framework

The context for our asset management strategy approach is
the Council Plan’s new ways of working. This includes:

Customer: Putting our customers at the heart of everything
we do.
Our aim is to engage and inform our customers providing
appropriate and timely information. We will listen to our
customers and make improvements to our service to achieve
an improved customer experience of the service.
Working Together: Working with partner organisations and communities to achieve shared
aspirations.
Our aim is to work with Local Committees, Parish and Town Councils, community groups and
partner organisations to deliver outcomes for the benefit of Cumbria and its communities.
Enterprise and Efficiency: Exploring new ways to deliver services and maximise our resources
Our aim is to explore innovative and commercial opportunities, to maximise our resources and
reduce our service impact on the climate and environment.
Prevention and Early Intervention: Acting early to achieve better outcomes.
Our aim is to ensure we adopt early intervention
44and prevention strategies to keep our

Cumbria County Council

communities healthy, safe and connected.
Digital Transformation: Giving our customers choice and easy access to online services
Our aim is to refresh our customer information and reporting systems by providing easy access
online, by telephone and email to ensure our customers can inform us of problems in the
network.

45

Cumbria County Council

5. Where we are now
Cumbria is at the forefront of national innovation, best practice and new ways of working. We
work closely with Department for Transport (DfT); other government departments; Environment
Agency and partners exploring and successfully securing funding and delivering infrastructure
and flood recovery programmes of work.
We have achieved the top band recognition for Highway Authorities through the DfT’s Incentive
Fund process.
Resilience
Cumbria has demonstrated strong leadership and crisis management through the delivery of
major programmes of infrastructure repairs and improvements caused by extreme weather
events over the last decade and a half. We have successfully managed these critical events and
implemented infrastructure recovery plans using additional investment provided through close
collaboration with Government Departments, and other partners.
Following a number of adverse weather events we have taken the feedback from our workforce
and partners to strengthen our knowledge and capability to improve the way we prepare and
respond to future events.

We have developed a Resilient Road Network to help prioritise investment decisions. As Lead
Local Flood Authority, we have worked with partners, including Environment Agency, United
Utilities and other groups such as Making Space for Water, to fully understand which of our
communities are susceptible to flooding and have been successful in securing additional funding
to reduce this risk.
Data Sharing
Based on an assessment of the Council’s key themes, our current position is that we recognise a
key improvement area is the availability of data and timely information to our customers. We
have begun to improve ways of providing this information through data on our web site, through
46 Members and local communities.
greater use of social media and engagement with

Cumbria County Council

Collaboration and Partnering
We participate in the national annual NHT survey which provides us with statistical valid sample
data from our communities on the status of the highways service and benchmarking ourselves
against other authorities.
We continue to work closely with our Members through the Local Committees to understand
community concerns and recognise the need to keep Members fully informed.
A “Working Together” initiative has been developed and implemented which provides a
foundation for working with Parish and Town Councils, through a signed protocol, to support
communities to carry out maintenance works that are important to them.
We have well established working arrangements in place with national and partner organisations
to share best practice and inform decision making (e.g. DfT, Highways England, Environment
Agency, Utility Companies, Sustrans, Public Transport operators and Emergency Services).
Innovation
The council is working with its supply chain to implement new materials for highway
maintenance. There have been early successes in dealing with tar bound materials and trialling
the use of plastic waste in surfacing materials.
We have implemented a new permitting scheme to manage and coordinate all highway and
utility works on the highway network, which will help reduce delays caused by roadworks across
the county. We are completing the implementation of a replacement programme for Road
Lighting to LED fittings and have already realised significant energy savings.

We recognise the benefits of using social media to inform the public of planned works and
especially during reactive events such as Storms Abigail, Desmond and Frank in 2015/2016, as
well as the “Beast from the East” in 2018.
We have reformed a number of our internal asset data collection and management systems that
will contribute to further improvements. This includes use of digital video surveys and analysis for
the entire network; development of an adverse weather alert system for bridge monitoring during
high rainfall periods and digital data capture, inventory and risk based approach for gully
cleansing and many other operations. We have introduced the use of online GIS platforms and
data sharing, both internally and externally and have introduced smart technology on our gritter
fleet to directly link the salt spreading to the forecast data and digitised routes. For all these
initiatives we have worked collaboratively47
with partners and ensured our workforce are fully

Cumbria County Council

trained and equipped to adapt to these new ways of working.
Efficiency
We have undertaken a comprehensive review of our supply chain frameworks for both
professional services and works with both cashable and non-cashable savings being achieved.
We have reviewed a significant number of our working processes and have identified
improvements that will enable the public, and Members, to access more information, as well as
being able to report issues to us in a more user friendly, and efficient way.
We have carried out a review of our identification, assessment and treatment for highway safety
inspections in accordance with The Code. The new risk based approach is founded on asset use
and not just classification of road.
Health, Safety and Wellbeing
We continue to embed a positive Health, Safety and Wellbeing approach with our workforce and
contractors and have held a number of events to promote this important initiative.

48

Cumbria County Council

6. Where we are going
We want to ensure our customers are at the heart of our service and recognise the
improvements we need to make to continue to enhance the customer experience; keep our
customers better informed and ensure our Members are briefed in a timely manner. We will
make it easier for the customer to access information online, by phone and email. This will
enable us to deal with problems on the network within agreed levels of service. Our staff will be
provided with the right resources, skills and capability to carry out their roles effectively in a
digital organisation.
We recognise the value of continuing to working with partner organisations and communities to
achieve shared aspirations. We will make the most of the local knowledge of our Members and
Local Committees to consider the priorities and aspirations of our communities.
We will work closely with Parish and Town Councils to further develop the “Working Together”
project to support communities to undertake additional work on the highway within an agreed
protocol.
We will work with partner organisations to keep Cumbria’s strategic network moving and to
deliver joint initiatives for implementing flood prevention measures. We will explore opportunities
for shared services with other authorities in Cumbria.
We will continue to work closely with the Department for Transport and other national
organisations on new approaches, innovations and industry leading initiatives.
Exploring new ways to deliver services is a core value of the Council Plan and the service
recognises the need to continue to develop this. This will include a focus on:




Innovation
Enterprising and commercially aware approach including income generation
Climate and environmental change

Focussing on our internal resources through a review that clearly promotes asset management
and integrated delivery.
We will adopt early intervention and prevention strategies to keep our communities healthy, safe
and connected. This includes:



Safety
Planning for Adverse Weather

We have a statutory duty to maintain and keep our highway network safe all year. We will embed
a risk-based approach to safety inspections to ensure defects are repaired in a timely manner, to
agreed service standards and response times to ensure the highway network is safe to use.
We will continue to promote a safe working culture for our workforce and contractors working on
our network.
We recognise the importance of planning for adverse weather events by reviewing and
implementing the winter service. We will continue to use community intelligence and data to
develop early intervention strategies to prevent
49 and minimise the impact of flooding.

Cumbria County Council

In meeting our digital objectives, the three Key Deliverable’s we will focus on over the term of this
Strategy are:




Customer Access
Internal Systems
Staff Connectivity

We will increase the number of online end-to-end application processes, ensuring our web site is
up to date, accurate and user friendly. We will refresh our customer information and reporting
systems by providing easy access online, by telephone through service centre, and email to
ensure our customers can inform us of problems on the network and that we respond in a
suitable and timely manner.
We will develop and improve key digital management systems such as inventory/data capture
and management, payment processing, reporting performance management, works
management and customer management.
Our staff will be provided with the right equipment to carry out their roles working in a digital
environment using smart technology and we will develop cultural changes to embrace new ways
of working. We will ensure our staff also have the right skills and training to maximise the
benefits of working in a digital organisation.
Our Strategy to Manage the Main Asset Groups
Managing the highways network effectively is crucial for the Council and there are a range of
challenges and opportunities which need to be considered in deciding how best to maintain and
manage the asset in the most effective way. These are set out below:
• Cumbria has an ageing network, which needs careful management of appropriate interventions
to deliver overall improvement;
• There are high public expectations about the condition and quality of the highway network and
improvements in highway maintenance continue to be the key concern in customer surveys;
• We are facing reduced levels of funding;
• Climate change is resulting in more frequent adverse weather conditions;
• Roads in poor condition are more expensive to maintain than roads in good condition, as they
require more reactive repairs, such as pothole filling, to keep them safe and when larger repairs
are delivered, the treatments required are more extensive and therefore more costly.
The highway network in Cumbria consists of a range of diverse assets. Table 2, below, sets out
the key asset groups and their extent across the county.
Asset Type
Carriageway

Extent
7,947km

Condition
Overall the network is in average
condition. This improvement reflects the
increased capital investment in recent
years.
50

Cumbria County Council

Footways and
Cycleways
Structures –
Bridges,
Culverts and
Retaining
Walls

4,957,599m2

Drainage

151,187 Gullies

Road Lighting

44,611 Columns: 3,487
Illuminated Signs

3,175

Approx. 8% of the footway network is
considered to require maintenance.
Bridges and structures are routinely
inspected and maintained to ensure a
steady state condition. This is achieved
through planned, cyclic maintenance and
reactive works as necessary. Large
numbers of retaining walls within the
county are still without condition data
although a programme of retaining wall
inspections has been initiated.
Approx. 3% of gullies are defective and
require remedial works. The condition of
other drainage assets in the county, such
as pipelines and manholes, is still being
gathered and is to be completed.
The Column Replacement Programme
replaced 10% of the ageing stock which
posed the greatest risk. A further 15%
remains in medium risk with 2% of stock
becoming life expired each year.

Traffic
Management
Systems

102 Traffic Signal
Controlled Junctions;
111 Controlled
Pedestrian Crossings
Table 2: Cumbria’s Highways Asset Groups and their Condition
The key factor in being able to maintain the highway infrastructure efficiently by carrying out
planned maintenance rather than reactive maintenance, understanding the condition of each
asset group. By understanding the condition we can determine how it is functioning, being used
and deteriorating and thereby plan the optimum maintenance intervention.
We have implemented a road hierarchy, based on use and local factors as opposed to a
traditional road classification approach. This will inform where we need to direct resources
including the adoption of a Resilient Road Network which is clearly identified
For each asset, a brief description of the condition of the asset is provided, followed by a statement
of the desired outcome this strategy seeks to achieve. The maintenance approach required to
deliver each outcome is then described.
Carriageways
The length of adopted carriageway is extensive within the County at over 7,900km. Table 3 breaks
down the carriageway into classified, unclassified and pedestrian only routes. These lengths do not
include the M6 and the Trunk Roads in the county that are managed by Highways England. The
council manages and maintains the majority of the highway network, from major roads through to
minor rural roads. A small proportion is managed by Connect Roads on behalf of the council under
a Private Finance Initiative Agreement.
Road Classification
Motorways and Trunk
Roads

CCC Length
(km)

51

Connect Roads PFI
(km)

Highways England
(km)
530

Cumbria County Council

‘A’ Roads
674
‘B’ Roads
589
‘C’ Roads
2,352
Unclassified Roads
3,799
Unsurfaced
375
Total
7,789
Combined CCC +
7,947
Connect Roads
Table 3: Carriageway (Highway Network) Lengths

157
0.4
0.5
158

530

Current Challenges
Carriageways are the most valuable highways asset in Cumbria and receive the greatest levels
of maintenance expenditure. They were the first asset for which lifecycle plans were developed
using current condition data to optimise investment. This has enabled a greater understanding of
where to target investment to achieve the desired levels of service. The Council has already
implemented use of new surfacing products that aim to recycle materials to form durable
construction materials. Lifecycle planning activities in terms of whole life carbon costs to be taken
into account when determining interventions, materials and treatments.
Strategic Framework
The Council’s refreshed asset management approach will be to target increased investment in the asset
in order to prevent a return to previous levels of deterioration. We will continue to explore new
technologies and materials particularly the use of recycled materials (existing surfacing materials and
remanufactured/enhanced surfacing products). We will also explore the inclusion of infrastructure that
supports more environmentally sustainable transport while delivering maintenance schemes (e.g. electric
charging points). To develop innovative techniques and greater use of technology to improve efficiency.
Quick Wins
Within Strategy Timeframe
 To sustain a steady state of condition
 The overall condition of the carriageway
with the highway asset:
asset is improved in line with minimum whole
life costs supported by appropriate levels of
o 19% of unclassified roads
requiring maintenance
investment.
o 6% for non-principal roads
 The carbon footprint of the maintenance
o 5% for principal roads
activities is reduced year on year and there
 To introduce digital inspection
is a move towards supporting
technologies on high-speed roads
environmentally sustainable transport
across the county.
modes.

Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
% Principal Roads requiring maintenance (Council Plan)
% Non-Principal Roads requiring maintenance (Council Plan)
% Unclassified Roads requiring maintenance (Council Plan)

52

19/20
8%
10%
18%

Cumbria County Council

Footways and Cycleways
Footways and cycleways are vital in Cumbria for providing safe and convenient access for a
range of essential journeys to access work, shops and schools. While many of them will be found
in the urban areas footways are also critical in rural areas in providing access to key services
and linking villages. Footways and Cycletracks are key assets in the sustainable transport
agenda and enabling people to choose modes of transport that have positive health impact and
minimal carbon impact.
Current Challenges
Detailed condition surveys of the highway footways and cycle ways have recently been
undertaken so the condition of footways and cycleways is now fully understood. A review of the
condition data is underway to develop cycle plans for these assets along with a targeted
approach to improve the condition of footways and cycleways using a risk based approach.
Strategic Framework
To interpret the condition data to effectively develop lifecycle plans and forecast the appropriate
intervention levels for each footway and cycleway. To develop innovative techniques and greater use of
technology to improve efficiency.
Quick WIns
Within Strategy Timeframe



To maintain a steady condition state.
To introduce digital inspection methods
to speed up walked inspections.





To improve the overall condition of footways
and where necessary adopt a preventative
approach to surface treatments.
o 12% below investigatory levels.
Increased usage of the asset to support
health and wellbeing of communities and
increased levels of walking and cycling
across the county to support the visitor
economy and reduced carbon footprint.

Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
% footway that is structurally unsound (lower is better)
% footway that is functionally impaired (lower is better)
% total footway requiring Maintenance (lower is better)

53

19/20
7%
40%
50%

Cumbria County Council

Structures
The Council is responsible for a large number of bridges and other structures across the county
consisting of around 1800 highway bridges, 900 large culverts, 500 retaining wall, 14 sea walls,
and 250 cattle grids. These are vital to maintaining accessibility, helping to connect communities
and support the economy, which became very apparent with the serious flooding events in
recent years.
Current Challenges
Maintaining these structures is a significant challenge especially with the threat of ever
increasing river levels as a result of climate change, the effect of which was witnessed in
December 2015 when Storm Desmond caused widespread damage across the county.
However, through a comprehensive programme of bridge inspections, including underwater
surveys, a prioritised maintenance regime aims to mitigate the risk associated with such events.
By carrying out maintenance works in a timely manner, before defects become significant,
budgets can be used more effectively to provide great longevity. Detailed asset data sets exist
for the majority of structures except for the retaining walls.
Strategic Framework
We need to maintain the safety of structures whilst making steady progress in addressing
structures where strengthening is desirable, utilising bridge condition, scour risk and route
priority as determinant factors. Following Storm Desmond in 2015 a significant number of
bridges were rebuilt, strengthened, repaired or protected to make them better able to withstand
such extreme rainfall events. This theme will need to be continued with increased levels of
funding to minimise the impact on the operational highway network, particularly as climate
change effects become more common.
Quick WIns
Within Strategy Timeframe
 To maintain the asset as ‘fit for
 To maintain a safe asset and ensure the
purpose’ and ‘safe for use’
movement of people and goods
efficiently round the county, keeping
 Target and maintain the existing
communities connected.
BSCI scores
 Have an asset stock that minimises flood
 Alleviate any culverts that are
risk and is resilient to the challenges of
causing flooding to third parties
more extreme weather events.
 Mitigate any risk from road over rail
vehicle incursions
Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
Number of substandard structures (Lower is better)
BSCI average rating (Higher is better)
BSCI critical element (Higher is better)

19/20
tbc
tbc
tbc

54

Cumbria County Council

Drainage
Cumbria County Council is the Lead Flood Authority with responsibilities for managing flooding
from local sources, namely Ordinary Watercourses, surface water (overland runoff) and
groundwater in the area.
Through a Cumbria Local Lead Flood Authority group we are working together with District
Councils and other relevant organisations to steer local flood risk management activities in
Cumbria. Partnership working between the County Council, Risk Management Authorities, other
relevant organisations and local communities is key to managing flood risk in the future, funding
future flood schemes and helping communities to become more resilient to flooding.
Current Challenges
Whilst asset data exists with regard to the majority of highway gullies, information on the
associated outfall systems of various types is still not fully understood. This creates significant
risk in understanding where drainage discharges from the highway. The collection of this data is
very expensive and Cumbria has therefore adopted a risk based approach to gathering it by
introducing asset management software that enables collection of this data while carrying out
maintenance activities.
Strategic Framework
A strategic and risk based approach will be adopted to determine where intervention is needed
most. We will continue with the long term programmes that invest in drainage works which will
prevent major maintenance on other assets and provide a more resilient network for users. The
current gully cleansing operating model is under review with the aim of improving flexibility,
quality and responsiveness to local need ensuring maintenance work is appropriate and risk
based rather than a “one size fits all”.
Quick WIns
Within Strategy Timeframe
 More closely integrate the separate
 To meet statutory duties and maintain a
drainage inventory into the asset
safe highway by continuing to assess
management system to support the
and prioritise high risk flooding issues
risk based maintenance approach.
and programme them accordingly.
Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
% Highway gullies that are free flowing and clear of obstruction (PP)

55

19/20
80%

Cumbria County Council

Road Lighting
Cumbria County Council currently maintains 44,611 road lighting columns, as well as over 4,000
other electrical units. A significant number of the columns are in need of replacement to reduce
risk. There is an ongoing programme to deliver column replacement and extend levels of low
energy lighting.
Our current lighting asset is set out below.
Asset Type
Lighting Columns
Illuminated Signs
Illuminated Bollards
School Flasher Units
Table 5: Lighting Assets

Quantity
44,611
3,487
466
106

The Council has embarked on a three year £5.3m capital programme to deliver significant
improvements to the lighting asset by replacing 41,000 high wattage main road lanterns. We
have invested £8.3m from the capital programme to replace 4,100 life expired columns. Of the
lanterns replaced countywide more than 37,000 are now dynamic lighting units that dim the
lighting levels according to use. This has reduced energy costs and carbon emissions saving
£1m per year. In the future all new lanterns will be LED and dynamic switched.
Current Challenges
Our challenges are the need to reduce energy costs, providing effective lighting systems and
maintaining these systems in the most cost effective way.
Strategic Framework
We are currently completing a comprehensive update of the lighting asset on our asset management
system to produce consistent statistical reports for stock levels and service performance; and to record
energy levels. We will also continue with the column replacement, LED and dynamic lighting
programmes. We are currently reviewing externally lit signs to reduce the number of separately lit units
and declutter the asset stock.
Quick WIns
Within Strategy Timeframe
 Develop and seek approval for a
 To adopt the well managed highway
comprehensive 5 year column
infrastructure code of practice covering road
replacement programme.
lighting.
 Complete the joint working agreement
 To move from a reactive maintenance
with all district and parish councils in
regime to a planned, sustainable asset
Cumbria.
management based approach.
 To continue to improve the lighting asset,
resulting in reduced operating costs and
carbon emissions.
 To further explore new and innovative
technologies that may reduce maintenance
liabilities; make better use of the asset to
support the emerging digital agenda or
provide vital services for communities.
 Support the Council’s asset management
aims of safety, innovation and sustainability.

Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
Number of street light columns in excess of the action age (lower is better)

56

19/20
2%

Cumbria County Council

Kilowatt hours
Carbon used

8,500,00
tbc

Traffic Management Systems
Traffic signal junctions are vital to manage traffic on the urban roads and many of our town
centres have an Urban Traffic Control System to coordinate the junctions. In addition, the
signalled pedestrian crossings provide safe crossing points for vulnerable road users to both
improve safety but also maintain their independence.
Current Challenges
Underinvestment in the existing infrastructure in the past has left a number of sites needing
refurbishment. Capital investment in recent years has helped to control this aspect and continued
investment to bring sites up to date is still required. A small team and a large County can result in
issues providing resilience to the management of the signals throughout Cumbria.
Strategic Framework
To continue to build a better quality level of infrastructure for the County and improve
communications to the sites allowing remote monitoring and management to take place.
Review staffing levels and roles to improve resilience and to enable the progression of
improvement works.
Quick WIns
Within Strategy Timeframe
 Refine the lifecycle model
 Continue to improve the infrastructure
demonstrating funding requirement
asset quality.
for various performance outcomes
 Increase the number of sites that are
monitored remotely.
 Assess critical issues likely to impact the
systems in order to reduce the reactive
response.
Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
Number of Signal Controllers (Junction and Pedestrian crossings) in excess of
action age (Lower is better)

57

19/20
3%

Cumbria County Council

7. Our approach to meeting our objectives
Our approach is set out in detail in our Highway Delivery Plan which accompanies this strategy
document.
By adopting an asset management approach we will continue to maximise the investment
available to improve the condition and longevity of the asset.













We will improve the information we provide to our customers in a more user-friendly
format and we will seek feedback through satisfaction surveys on the improvements we
implement , along with regular dashboard reporting on the overall performance of the
service.
We will ensure that any information on programmed works being carried out is shared with
local Members and the public in a more timely manner.
We will work with Parish and Town Councils and community groups to deliver “Working
Together” agreements on projects.
We will explore opportunities to collaborate with other agencies and partners to share best
practice and influence national decision-making.
We will develop and implement innovative ways of working to deliver an enterprising and
commercially aware approach.
We will always consider new opportunities to procure, manage and deliver highway
services; review our processes and be receptive to challenge on how efficient we are.
We will secure additional funding and reduce the impact of climate change and adverse
weather events.
We will further embed our risk-based approach to managing our assets ensuring that the
most appropriate early intervention is carried out in a timely and efficient manner. We will
implement new systems to ensure defects are repaired to agreed service standards and
response times.
We will implement new innovative systems to improve our digital offer to customers
ensuring our web site, social media content and other digital formats are fit for purpose.
Staff will be upskilled to use the new innovative systems to the best effect and act as
digital champions for our service, helping customers improve their digital skills so they can
benefit from our improved offer.

58

Cumbria County Council

8. Climate Change
We are all well aware of the effects of climate change on our environment and we will ensure
that all mitigations are taken in relation to the direct and indirect impact of highway maintenance
on the environment and our communities.
Consideration of whole life carbon costs; Appraisal of materials, products and treatments for
maintenance for environmental impact, nature conservation and biodiversity; and risk
assessment and mitigations for the effects of extreme weather on highway infrastructure assets
(Climate Change Adaptation).
We take into account the following issues when considering our approach to highway
maintenance:








Carbon costs and energy reduction
Noise
Materials utilisation
Waste management and recycling
Air quality and pollution control
Nature conservation and biodiversity
Environmental intrusion

Highway maintenance sustainability links to the wider environment and sustainability
principles and outcomes of Cumbria County Council and our stakeholders and partner
contractors.

59

Cumbria County Council

9. Data Management
We undertake a risk-based approach to asset management utilising the extensive knowledge of
the various elements of the highway. We retain that knowledge through our maintenance of
validated inventories which are available throughout the decision making cycle.
The council collects data across the full spectrum of highway assets, including:








Carriageways
Footways
Structures
Lighting columns and associated electrical apparatus
Road gullies, associated pipework and chambers
Trees, vegetation and associated green space (ecological concerns)
Safety barriers and fences

This data is collected and recorded in centrally managed databases that provide a central (and
singular) version of the asset condition.
Through this asset management approach, we will continue to maximise the investment
available to improve the condition and longevity of the asset.
We will continue to review the data recorded as well as the frequency and the manner in which it
is recorded.

60

Cumbria County Council

10. Lifecycle Planning
Life cycle planning comprises the approach to the maintenance of an asset from construction to
disposal. It is the prediction of future performance of an asset or a group of assets based upon
investment scenarios, usage and maintenance strategies.
Typically, there are five stages to the life of an asset:






Creation/ acquisition – a new asset as a result of a new development of capital project
Routine maintenance – cyclic and reactive maintenance designed to maintain the asset in
a serviceable condition.
Renewal/ replacement – major work required when cyclic maintenance / reactive works
are unable to sustain the asset to the required standard
Upgrading – improvement to an asset to meet increased demands
Disposal – decommissioning of an asset when past its economic life

The ability to make the right decision at the right time is the key to effective lifecycle planning.
Using the data available will ensure that the asset will provide the expected level of service over
its expected life span at the most efficient cost. To support hat, we will:




Increase our knowledge of the asset through continual survey work.
Cyclic maintenance to repair minor faults.
Develop a medium/long term programme for major work to sustain the asset for its full life
span.

61

Cumbria County Council

11. Best Practice and Performance Monitoring
We will continue to adopt a performance management framework, which will be measured and
reported regularly internally and published on our website.
Cumbria County Council is committed to the development of good practice, innovation and
continuous improvement having already played a key role in the development of a number of
initiatives at both a regional and national level.
We are committed to sharing knowledge and experience in implementing asset management
with other Highway Authorities across the Country and are active members of the following:










Local Council Innovation Group (LCRIG)
DMG Benchmarking Club
NHT Survey
CQC Efficiency Network
CIPFA HAMP Network
ADEPT Asset Management Board
UK Roads Liaison Board
National Traffic Managers Forum
HAUC

62

Cumbria County Council

12. Delivering the strategy
This document is supported by a Highways Asset Management Delivery Plan, which provides
the top-level key deliverables and measures of success and a refreshed Highways Asset
Management Plan (HAMP) including policies and guidance, service standards and levels of
intervention in respect to the Council’s legal requirements and its service provision.
We will continue to review our progress against this plan to ensure we continue to deliver best
practice and performance. We will use our assessments of our progress to consider where
changes are required and to ensure that we continue to improve as a highway maintenance
service provider.

63

Cumbria County Council

13. Our measures of success
To ensure we are getting it right we will ask our customers for feedback. As part of the NHT
survey, we receive and assess feedback of an annual survey of households that focusses on all
highway aspects and compares our performance to other authorities nationally. This is important
to us and enables us to compare our improvements to other similar authorities.
We also undertake customer satisfaction surveys and seek feedback on all aspects of highways
asset management and delivery.

64

Cumbria County Council

65

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Highways Delivery Plan

This plan provides a high level overview of the work which will take place over the coming years to support the Highways Asset Management
Strategy.
It is structured around the five Council Plan key strands:


Our Customers



Working Together



Enterprise and Efficiency



Prevention and Early Intervention



Digital Transformation

66

1. Our Customers: Putting our customers at the heart of everything we do

67

Aim – To engage and inform our customers providing timely information. We will listen to our customers and make improvements to our
service.
Overview
Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Measures of Success
Enhancing the Customer
We want to ensure that we have a consistent
Experience
approach to the way we communicate with our
customers and how we respond to feedback
and questions through:
o The implementation an efficient
2021
o Implementation and embedding of
process/system for managing all customer
a Customer Management Tool.
correspondence
o The continued improvement of our service 2020
o Regular management reporting
centre in responding to customer
from the service centre information
enquiries
on a monthly basis.
o To implement a one stop shop/single point 2022
o A single front door approach for our
of contact for all correspondence being
customers to ensure consistent and
routed through the service centre to
timely responses is delivered.
o Continuous improvement of
provide a seamless end to end service for
customer satisfaction scores
the customer
through:
o Implementation of a customer
2020
feedback/satisfaction tool to inform future
Web site satisfaction surveys.
improvements to delivery of the highway
Customer feedback surveys.
service.
NHT Survey
o Investing in our staff to ensure the service 2020-2025
o Fewer complaints and increase in
delivers a consistent high quality face-tocompliments.
face customer experience whilst
enhancing and protecting the reputation of
the Council.

Overview
Keeping our Customers
Informed

68
Keeping Members
informed

Key Deliverables
We want to improve the quality and ease of
access to information available to our
customers in a timely consistent manner.
This includes but is not limited to:
o Details of all highways information
available through the Council’s recognised
communication channels. E.g. web site,
Social Media.
o A communication plan will be developed
for those relevant schemes.
o To establish a customer focussed
performance framework linked to agreed
service standards.
o Timely and appropriate consultation and
engagement on present and future
schemes and projects.
o Improve on site information boards on
major schemes

Key Dates

An agreed established process for twoway feedback between the Members and
Officers.
Embed the principle of “No Surprises”.
Members will be the first to know about
events and issues in their Divisions.
Regular one to one meetings with portfolio
holders.

o
o
o

2020

Measures of Success

o

Increased web site visits and
number of engagements on Social
Media linked to reduction in the
number of complaints.

o

Performance management
dashboard published and updated
on routine basis

2020-2025

o

Benchmarking against other
authorities.

2020

o

2020/2021

o

Reduction in complaints and
customers feeling informed and
able to contribute and have their
say on local issues. Measured
through customer satisfaction
surveys including:
Web site satisfaction surveys.
Customer feedback surveys.
NHT Survey.
Positive Member feedback on the
information the service provides.

2021
2021/2022

2020
2020

2. Working Together: Working with partner organisations and communities to achieve shared aspirations

69

Aim – To work with Local Committees, Parish & Town Councils, community groups and partner organisations to deliver outcomes for the
benefit of Cumbria and its communities.
Overview
Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Measures of Success
Local Committees
We will make the most of the local knowledge
o Report to Local Committees the
of our Members and Local Committees to
programmed works for the year and
consider priorities and aspirations of our
confirm priorities with them.
o Ensure that any information on
communities.
works being carried out is shared
Local Committees to monitor and oversee
2020
delivery of all highway works in their locality.
with local Members first before the
wider public is advised.
“Working Together”
Deliver the “Working Together” project to focus 2022
o No of “Working Together”
on supporting community projects with Parish
agreements in place and projects
and Town Councils and community groups.
delivered.
Partner Agencies
We will discuss opportunities to collaborate
o No of shared outcome projects
with other partner organisations and agencies.
delivered.
o Working with partner organisations to
2020/2021
o An improved working relationship
keep Cumbria’s strategic network moving
with Highways England and
and joint initiatives for flood prevention
Environment Agency where issues
measures agreed.
raised by CCC are resolved.
o Explore opportunities for shared services
2022/2025
o Number of shared service
with other Authorities in Cumbria and
arrangements in place.
adjacent Authorities.
National Organisations
The Service works closely with national
o No of key recognitions for Cumbria
organisations such as Department for
at national conferences, national
Transport/ADEPT/UK Roads Liaison Group
initiatives or in industry media and
and others on new approaches, innovations
events.
and industry leading initiatives. This is valuable Throughout the life
to showcase the excellent work of the service
of the plan
and maintain a positive high profile for
Cumbria.

3. Enterprise and Efficiency: Exploring new ways to deliver services and maximise our resources

70

Aim – To explore innovative and commercial opportunities, to maximise our resources and reduce our service impact on the climate and
environment.
Overview
Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Measures of Success
Innovation
Explore opportunities for an innovative
o Increased number of innovative
approach to service delivery.
projects and programmes
o Digital inspections for highways /
2020/2021
delivered.
o Increased local and national
structures
recognition for being an innovative
o Utility permit scheme
2020
o Adverse weather alert system for
2020/2021
highway service.
o Recognition through industry
Structures and drainage assets
awards.
o Use of innovative and recycled
2020/2023
materials e.g. waste plastic in roads
o Being at the forefront of national
2020/2025
innovation and best practice in the
industry working with DfT e.g.
BridgeCAT
Enterprising and
Implementing new ways of working that
o Increased income to support priority
commercially aware
generate income e.g.
services
o Charging for use of highway space (e.g.
2023
approach including
Income Generation
roundabouts/other assets)
o Sell and promote services to external
2020/2023
clients
Explore and maximise all funding opportunities
through local and national networks.
o Number of successful funding
opportunities achieved
Supporting the workforce to ensure they have
the right skills to deliver services in new ways.
o Workforce development plan

Overview
Climate/Environmental
Change

71
Internal resources

Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Using intelligence and data to improve our
ability in planning and responding to seasonal
2020/2021
and adverse weather events.
o Resilient Road Network
o Implement a risk based approach to
highway drainage maintenance
Working with partners to improve Air Quality
and reduce carbon footprint.
2020/2021
o Electric vehicle charging points
o Driver efficiency programmes for our fleet
e.g. idling vehicles
o Review our fleet and fuel dependency
o Implement more efficient route planning
and logistics
o Develop a system to measure the services
carbon footprint
Increase usage of environmentally friendly and
recycled materials.
Ensure that the highways depots are safe, fit
for purpose and maximise use of resources.
Provide appropriate welfare facilities for our
staff working on the network.
Implement efficient processes for key logistic
activities:
o Stores
o Plant
o Stock

2022

Measures of Success
o Minimising disruption to road users
and communities
o

Reduced flooding events on the
network

o

Air Quality improved

o

Number of Electric Charging points

o

Reduction in fossil fuel
consumption and fleet mileage

o

Reduction in carbon footprint and
ability to measure

o
o

o

Tonnage of materials recycled.
Depot review complete and
recommendations implemented.
Appropriate welfare facilities
provided.
Positive staff and unions feedback

o

Efficiencies identified and delivered.

o

4. Prevention and Early Intervention: Acting early to achieve better outcomes

72

Aim – To ensure we adopt early intervention and prevention strategies to keep our communities healthy, safe and connected.
Overview
Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Measures of Success
Safety
Further embed our risk based approach to
o Number of defects found and
safety inspections to ensure defects are
repaired within target times.
2020/2025
o Reduction in number of reported
repaired timely, to agreed standards and
response times to ensure the highway network
defects
is safe to use.
o Highway condition assessments are
o Overall condition of the network
carried out to a consistent standard to
improved.
ensure county-wide development of
schemes to maximise safety.
o Promote a safe working culture for our
o Monitoring the implementation of
workforce and contractors working on our
the Health, Safety and Wellbeing
network.
plan
o Improved Accident record for our
workforce
Planning for Adverse
Recognise the importance of planning for
Weather
adverse weather events to ensure our
2021
communities are supported and can stay
healthy, safe and connected.
o Review and implement the winter service.
o Early intervention plan implemented
o Use community intelligence and data to
for all adverse weather events
2024
o Improved response to adverse
develop early intervention strategies to
weather events
prevent flooding and minimise impact. E.g.
flood early warning system for structures
and drainage assets.

5. Digital Transformation: Giving our customers choice and easy access to online services
Aim – To refresh our customer information and reporting systems by providing easy access online, by telephone and email to ensure our
customers can inform us of problems on the network.
Overview
Key Deliverables
Key Dates
Measures of Success
Customer Access

73

Internal Systems

Staff Connectivity

Increase the number of end to end online
application processes.
o Ensure our web site is up to date,
accurate and user friendly.
o We will refresh our customer information
and reporting systems by providing easy
access online, by telephone and email to
ensure our customers can inform us of
problems on the network.
Develop and improve our key systems
o Data Management
o Payment processing
o Performance Management Reporting
o Asset Management
o Works Management
o Customer Management Tool
Our staff will be provided with the right
equipment to do their roles effectively in a
digital organisation. E.g. tablets, smartphones,
laptops, use of virtual meetings
Our staff will have the right skills and training to
maximise use of digital technology.

o

Number of reports made to us.

2020

o

Positive feedback from web users.

2021

o

Customer Satisfaction reports.

Complete by 2024

o
o

New systems in place.
Staff feedback via forum groups
and surveys.
Cashable and non-cashable
savings achieved.

o

2020/2022

o
o
o

Staff feedback via forum groups
and surveys.
Cashable and non-cashable
savings achieved.
All staff trained and competent on
use of new systems.

This page is intentionally left blank

75

Highways Asset
Management
Strategy
Update March 2020

Serving the people of Cumbria

Highways Strategy
Background

76

•
•
•
•

Developed in late 2015
Cabinet approval 26 November 2015
Set out Asset Management Approach
Set foundation for Incentive Fund SelfAssessment (Band 3)

Serving the people of Cumbria

Refresh of Highways Strategy
• Align to Council Plan
• Outcome Focus
• Shape the Improvement
Plan
77

e.g. Customer – Improving customer access to information, reporting
performance against agreed standards and resolving issues more effectively;
Working Together – Developing agreements with Parish and Town Councils;
Efficiency – Use of innovation to be more efficient (Recycled road materials);
Prevention and Early Intervention – Risk based approach to defects;
Digital – Investing in Digital solutions such as gully asset data collection

Serving the people of Cumbria

Our Vision

78

Unchanged from current Strategy:
‘A customer focused, resilient and cost effective
service that delivers a safe and well managed
highways asset’

Serving the people of Cumbria

Proposed timetable for the
Strategy Refresh

79

• Share Refresh Principles with Highways Improvement Board –
September 2019 - COMPLETED
• Refresh and develop the Strategy – October 2019 - COMPLETED
• Share draft Strategy with Local Committees – November 2019 COMPLETED
• Cabinet to agree Strategy – April 2020
• Dept for Transport Incentive Fund Self Assessment Questionnaire –
28th February 2020
• Highways Board to oversee delivery of Highways Strategy Action Plan
in liaison with Local Committees

Serving the people of Cumbria

Next Steps

80

• Share draft refreshed document with Highways
Improvement Board – January 2020
• Refine the Strategy documents – February-March
2020
• Department for Transport Incentive Fund Self
Assessment Questionnaire – 28th February 2020
• Scrutiny Advisory Board consulted –12th March 2020
• Cabinet to agree Strategy – 23rd April 2020
• Define governance for Highways Board to oversee
delivery of Highways Strategy Delivery Plan in liaison
with Local Committees

Serving the people of Cumbria

Highways Permit
Scheme
81

Update March 2020

Agenda Item 8

Serving the people of Cumbria

Why move to a Permit
scheme?
• To ensure that the authority complies with it’s “Network Management Duty”
• Part 3 of the Traffic Management Act (TMA) 2004 introduced permit schemes
as a new way for activities on the public highway to be managed.
82

• To Improve the authorities’ ability to minimise disruption from road and
street works activities.
• There is a Statutory duty under S.59 of the New Road and Street Works Act
1991, for street authorities to co-ordinate works.
• To maintain an accurate and up to date street works register.

Serving the people of Cumbria

What are the objectives?

83










Effective Coordination across all of Cumbria.
To keep accurate & up to date street works register
To keep free flowing traffic.
To Improve safety for highway users
To protect our highway network assets
To Improve air quality/reduce noise
To reduce customer complaints
To improve the public perception of highways activities.

Serving the people of Cumbria

What has been completed?
A review of the Cumbria County National Street Gazetteer.

•

The ‘Cost Benefit Assessment’ for the scheme.

•

The ‘Fees Matrix’ report .

•

Production of a full business case for the scheme. (for DFT)

•

Modelling benefits of implementing a permit scheme.

•

Production of Permit scheme documentation.

•

Consultation with Utilities & Stakeholders.

•

Determined the level of resources required to operate the scheme.

•

Procurement of specialist permit software allowing online applications

•

CCC website updated

84

•

Serving the people of Cumbria

What is Happening Now
• Permit scheme introduced to Utility companies February 3rd – no charges
made for permits for the first month
• Permit charges introduced to Utility companies March 2nd
85

• Reshaping of the Streetworks team to provide County wide consistency and
improved line management – Consultation Period February 25th – April 9th
• Consideration of timeline of internal permitting for works

• Procurement of additional software to display all works / road closures on the
website – allows better co-ordination of works and enables public to plan
journeys

Serving the people of Cumbria

Next Steps
• Introduce internal permits
• Complete the reshaping of the team and recruit additional
roles
86

• Continual liaison with Utility companies
• Review of Permit scheme and permit charges

Serving the people of Cumbria

Agenda Item 9
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD – COMMUNITIES
AND PLACE
Meeting date: 12 March 2020
From:

Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor

Draft Task and Finish Group Scope
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report sets out, attached as Appendix 1, a draft scope for a Task and
Finish Group for Board Members’ consideration. The proposed Task and
Finish Group will focus on the impacts and needs of new development in
respect of physical and social infrastructure.

2.0

Issues for Scrutiny

2.1

Board Members’ are asked to consider and agree the draft scope attached
as Appendix 1.

3.0

Background

3.1

Over the last year, Board Members have considered the Council’s approach
and performance in relation to a number of specified planning agreements.
Following on from this, Members agreed that the issue of ensuring that the
appropriate infrastructure is secured to support new development required
further exploration. That, also, this needs to be considered in the wider
context of the scale of new development planned in Cumbria over the next
few years, and the overall effectiveness of the county’s planning system in
mitigating the impact and meeting the needs resulting from new
development.

3.2

The draft scope is attached as Appendix 1 for Member’s consideration.

3.3

The scope will then be subject to approval by the Chair and Vice Chair of the
Scrutiny Management Board. An invite will then be issued to all nonexecutive Members of the Council to participate in the Group.

3.4

It is proposed that evidence-gathering activity takes place between April and
September, and that the Group’s findings and recommendations be
considered by this Board in November 2020, prior to presentation to Cabinet
in December 2020.

87

Clare Killeen
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor
2 March 2020

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Draft Task and Finish Group scope.
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions.
Background Papers
No background papers
Contact: Clare Killeen, tel. 01228 226514, clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk.

88

Project Outline for Scrutiny Review
Review Title:

Provision of infrastructure to support new development

Date of Board meeting
at which scope agreed:

12 March 2020 (subject to approval)

Advisory Board:

Communities and Place
Scrutiny Advisory Board

Members:

To be identified from all non-executive
Members

Timescales:

Evidence gathering –
April – September 2020
Consideration of
findings and
recommendation
October 2020

Reasons for review:

Scrutiny Officer
Support

Clare Killeen
Chair: To be
identified

Board Meeting:

Cabinet Meeting:

17 November
2020

17 December 2020

Building on the work of the Communities and Place Scrutiny
Advisory Board to date on understanding the Council’s approach
to specific planning obligation agreements, Members agreed to
explore in depth the implications of new development in respect
of physical and social infrastructure.
To then also consider potential improvements to ensure that both
the physical and social infrastructure needed to support new
development in Cumbria is effectively secured in the future.

Review Aims and
Objectives:

Links to Council Plan:



Obtain an understanding of the strengths and constraints
of current arrangements;



To analyse examples of good practice in Cumbria and
from other areas;



To gather the experiences of a range of stakeholders –
including communities, developers, district councils and
others;



To consider this issue in the context of plans for future
development and growth in Cumbria; and,



Develop recommendations for improving the effectiveness
of the system.

The impact and needs of new development are critical to the
sustainability of communities and to the county’s economy. This
work will support the delivery of all 3 of the outcomes set out in
the Council Plan:


People in Cumbria are healthy and safe



Places in Cumbria are well-connected and thriving



The economy in Cumbria is growing and benefits
everyone
Page 1 of 2

89

Key Officer Support:

Key Officers include:
Phil Greenup, Assistant Director – Highways and Transport
Scrutiny support for the Task & Finish activity will be provided by
the Policy & Scrutiny Team

Potential Participants

Supporting/Background
documents:
(to include key strategies
and projects)

Proposed Methodology

Internal

External



Cabinet Members





Local Members

District Council
Officers



Executive Director



Community
representatives



Assistant Directors



Developers



Managers



The Council’s planning obligations policy



Past reports and performance reports on the Council’s
planning performance



Analysis, research and case studies (as available) on
practice

A number of Task and Finish Group sessions:


A scene setting session and identification of key lines of
enquiry



Evidence gathering and witness sessions



Potential survey or engagement activity within identified
customers



Consideration of findings and development of
recommendations for action to be considered by Cabinet

Approved by SMB:

Date:

Page 2 of 2

90

Agenda Item 10
SCRUTINY ADVISORY BOARD – COMMUNITIES
AND PLACE
Meeting date: 12 March 2020
From:

Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor

Board Briefing – Communities and Place Scrutiny
Advisory Board
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report provides Board Members with the Board’s work programme and
asks Members to consider additions to the programme for the coming year.
In addition, this report also provides Members with the Council’s Forward
Plan of Key Decisions.

2.0

Issues for Scrutiny

2.1

Members are asked to:

2.2

Consider the Board’s current work programme as attached as Appendix 1
and consider additions that Members wish to make, with reference to the
Council’s current Council Plan Delivery Plan attached as Appendix 2;

2.3

Consider the Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1 April 2020 – 31 May 2020,
attached as Appendix 3.

3.0

Work Programme

3.1

Since the last meeting of the Board, conversations have taken place
between the Chair of the Board, Scrutiny Officers and Executive Directors to
support the development of the Board’s work programme for 2020/21. The
resulting proposed work programme is attached as Appendix 1; however,
Members are encouraged to consider what other issues they may wish to
explore over the next 12 months.

3.2

The Council’s current Council Plan Delivery Plan is attached as Appendix 2,
which includes the Council’s key planned actions over the next 2 years, to
inform Members’ deliberations.

91

4.0

Forward Plan of Key Decisions

4.1

The current Forward Plan of Key Decisions for 1 April 2020 – 31 May 2020 is
attached as Appendix 2. Members are asked to note the items which relate
to the work of the Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board and
identify any items where further information is required.

Clare Killeen
Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor
2 March 2020

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Draft Communities and Place Scrutiny Advisory Board Work
Programme 2020/21
Appendix 2 – Council Plan Delivery Plan 2019/20
Appendix 3 – Forward Plan of Key Decisions 1 April 2020 – 31 May 2020
Previous Relevant Council or Executive Decisions
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions.
Background Papers
No background papers
Contact: Clare Killeen, tel. 01228 226514, e-mail clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk.

92

Communities & Place Scrutiny Advisory Board Work Programme – March 2020
Meeting / Timescale
April – October 2020
June 2020

93

September 2020

Topic
Infrastructure and new development

Purpose
Task & Finish Group

Implementation of new highways safety
& inspection arrangements
Haverigg prison

To consider a six-month review of implementation.

Racial abuse

To explore scope for consideration of levels of racial abuse in Cumbria.

Carbon Reduction

To consider the Council’s activity to reduce carbon emissions.
To consider other issues to be explored in relation to climate change.

Transport for the Future

To consider future transport issues in Cumbria, including a focus on the
potential of Active Travel and the benefits of Cumbria’s natural assets.

Land and Water Management

To consider the opportunities and implications for land and water
management in the post-Brexit policy landscape.

Flood prevention and protection

To consider the effectiveness and scheduling of flood prevention and
protection plans in Cumbria.

Cumbria Fire and Rescue – Inspection
follow up

To explore in depth a specific issue identified as a result of the outcome
of the June 2019 Inspection of the Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service
(subject to consideration at March 2020 meeting).

To explore scope for consideration of implications of change in
categorisation of Haverigg Prison.

Topic
November 2020
Waste

Purpose
To consider the opportunities and implications for the reduction,
management and disposal of waste in the post-Brexit policy landscape.
To consider progress on implementation of Recycling and Reuse Task
and Finish Group recommendations.

94

To be timetabled

Equalities

To consider progress on implementation of Equality Objectives Task and
Finish Group recommendations.

Funding context for clean, inclusive
growth

To consider post-Brexit funding arrangements and the wider context for
delivering clean, inclusive growth in Cumbria.

Development and Infrastructure Task &
Finish Group

To consider the findings and recommendations of the Task and Finish
Group.

Cumbria Local Transport Plan

Early Scrutiny engagement in the development of a new Transport Plan
for Cumbria.

Cumbria County Council

Your
council
149
95

Your
one to
one

Serving the people of Cumbria

Council
Your
Plan
council
2019-22

Your
Delivery
appraisal
Plan
2019/20

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Introduction
In February 2018 full Council agreed a new Council Plan 2018-2022 with the vision of being:
‘A Council that works with residents, businesses, communities and other organisations
to deliver the best services possible within the available resources’.
This Delivery Plan sets out how the Council will continue contributing towards achieving the
outcomes for the people of Cumbria set out in the Council Plan 2018-2022. The Council Plan
provides the context for fresh approaches and programmes of work for the Council to take
forward over 4 years and so this Delivery Plan will be a dynamic document as activities emerge
and develop as new opportunities and ways of working are explored, tested and implemented.

150
96

We will assess our progress each year and this plan is refreshed to reflect progress and set out
our aims for the year ahead. It builds on the successes of year 1 and moves forward with a
continued commitment to transforming the way we work and supporting communities to thrive.
Progress will be monitored by Cabinet quarterly.
This Delivery Plan is focused on achieving 3 outcomes:
People in Cumbria are healthy and safe.
Places in Cumbria are well-connected and thriving.
The economy in Cumbria is growing and benefits everyone.
The Plan also sets out what we aim to do to ensure that we as an organisation are financially
sustainable for the future and can support communities to thrive across Cumbria and deliver the
best services with the resources available.
This Delivery Plan identifies which senior officers across the Council are responsible for delivery
of each activity. In some cases, reflecting the cross-cutting and collaborative approaches required,
this will involve delivery by the full Extended Leadership Team (ELT).

3

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1

People in cumbria
are healthy and safe
151
97
Serving the people of Cumbria

Being healthy and safe is the foundation for wellbeing and
pursuing aspirations. We want people to have access to the
information and the tools to help keep themselves safe and
as healthy as possible for as long as possible. We want our
children, young people and vulnerable adults to be protected
from harm and be given the support they need to achieve
their ambitions. When people do need specialist or
emergency help they should receive it.

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

Supporting Outcome: Cumbria’s environment and society will support people to be healthy and safe and manage their
own physical and mental wellbeing
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

152
98

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.1

Continue to work across North and South Cumbria to deliver Integrated Care
Communities (ICC) with Phase 3 of ICCs in North Cumbria commencing
September 2019, and in South Cumbria improve health and care referral
pathways through the development of a co-ordination hub model.

By March 2020

AD - Integration and
Partnerships

1.2

Begin implementation of the Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy with 6 month
progress report received by Public Health Alliance.

By October 2019

Director of Public Health

1.3

To support better outcomes for people and support people to achieve the most
By December 2019 AD - Adults
independent outcome a reshaping of adult social care staff is to be implemented.

1.4

Further develop memorandum of understanding across all strategic partnerships
(Safer Cumbria, HWBB, Adult and Children’s Safeguarding and CTB) to work
together to deliver priorities for Cumbria. MOU signed off with agreed priorities
by Dec 2019.

By December 2019 AD - Integration and
Partnerships

1.5

Undertake a minimum of 3 pathfinder projects with local communities and
partners with the aim of developing new ways of working that enable individuals
and communities to thrive, and help address critical service demand issues.

By March 2020

Director of Public Health/AD
- Customer and Community
Services

1.6

Work with partners through the Joint Public Health Strategy to develop an
evidence base for climate change adaptation and jointly identify key actions
which will mitigate the likely impact of existing climate change.

By March 2020

Director of Public Health

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

Supporting Outcome: Cumbria’s environment and society will support people to be healthy and safe and manage their
own physical and mental wellbeing
Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.7

Designing, implementing and embedding new ways of working for Adult Social Care and Occupational AD - Adults
Therapy in a hospital and community setting.

1.8

Take the learning from the thriving community pathfinders to inform future development and
implementation across the council and the county establishing new ways of working that support and
enable thriving communities and individuals.

Director of Public Health/AD
- Customer and Community
Services

153
99
Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

Supporting Outcome: Children, young people and the most vulnerable will be protected from harm
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

100
154

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.9

Move to new board arrangements for Children’s safeguarding. Board
established, draft plan expected following peer review, plan by end of June 2019
- Implement September.

By September 2019 AD - Integration and
Partnerships

1.10

Corporate Parenting Board will oversee the implementation and embedding of
the Children Looked After (CLA) and Leaving Care Strategy - Action plan to be
developed - June 2019, Reporting on action - Sept 2019.

By September 2019 AD - Children and Families

1.11

New Children, Young People and Families Health and Wellbeing service
launched

By January 2020

Director of Public Health

1.12

Refreshed CLA recovery plan to continue with impact to be evidenced and
financial milestones met by March 2020.

By March 2020

AD - Children and Families

1.13

Equip schools and other settings with the tools they need to build resilience in
Children and Young People, and will have trained a minimum of one person per
school in Youth Mental Health First Aid throughout the county.

By December 2019

Director of Public Health

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.14

Evaluate impact of new arrangements for Children, Young People and Families Health and Wellbeing.

Director of Public Health

1.15

Evaluation of effectiveness of new Children’s Safeguarding Board arrangements.

AD Integration & Partnerships

1.16

LGA peer review undertaken in Adults.

AD Adults

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

Supporting Outcome: Those who need specialist or emergency services will receive them when they need them
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

101
155

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.17

Work with health partners to improve the quality of joined up services for young
By December 2019 AD - Strategic Commissioning/
people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities. Implement improvement
AD - Education and Skills
plan, implement appropriate contractual frameworks, continue to develop
arrangements for complex cases.

1.18

North Cumbria Health & Care System and Morecambe Bay Integrated Care
Partnership to deploy Population Health Management solutions to support
Integrated Care Communities in utilising risk stratification or segmentation
techniques to improve proactive management of patient cohorts.

By March 2020

Director of Public Health

1.19

Continue to develop the Council’s in house care services to improve efficiency,
maintain and improve quality and respond to changing demands and market
requirements. Publish a development plan 2019-22 for the Council’s in house
services.

By July 2019

AD - Provider Services

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.20

Ensure we have sufficient/appropriate Fire Protection capacity and skills to meet the outcomes and
recommendations from the Independent Review following the Grenfell Tower fire.

Asst Chief Fire Officer

1.21

The council will work towards increasing the proportion of homecare services delivered by Cumbria
Care to 40% of the market share.

AD - Strategic Commissioning

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

Supporting Outcome: People will be able to access advice and support to help keep themselves safe
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Action

Milestone

1.22

Develop and Implement a plan for strengthening the front door to Adult Social
Care to improve the management of demand in the system.

By December 2019 AD - Integration and
Partnerships

1.23

Work with partners to increase referrals and delivery of prevention activity and
explore opportunities for further collaboration around prevention and medical
intervention with addition of workstreams to the Fire prevention agenda such as
atrial fibrillation and other health conditions in line with the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment.

By March 2020

Asst Chief Fire Officer

1.24

A co-produced, multiagency transition event to take place in July 2019 aimed at
parents of children who are likely to transition to Adults Services for information
awareness raising and engagement.

By July 2019

AD - Education and Skills

102
156

Ref

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

1.25

Continue to improve the website and provide information, advice and guidance that enables people to
make informed decisions about their lives and to access support and services as required.

AD - Customer and
Community Services

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 1 People

in cumbria are healthy and safe

How we will measure progress against this outcome 2019/20

103
157

M1.1

A reduction in proportion of children overweight and obese from 26.0% at Reception stage and 35.2% at Year 6.

M1.2

A reduction in numbers of Children Looked After to below 626 to bring us in line with our statistical neighbours.

M1.3

An increase in the number of Cumbria County Council foster care households by 15 per year.

M1.4

A reduction in numbers of children & young people subject to a child protection plan to below 520 (rate of
56/10,000) by end of March 2020.

M1.5

An increase in Cumbria Care residential occupation rates to 95% of available beds.

M1.6

Reduction in A&E admissions in line with Integrated Health and Care System Plan targets.

M1.7

Increase proportion of those receiving reablement being home at 91 days following discharge to at least 91.1%.

M1.8

Reduction in Delayed Transfers of Care delayed days in line with Better Care Fund targets.

M1.9

The number of accidental primary dwelling fires to be less than 241 in 2019/20.

M1.10 The number of Fire Protection audits in commercial premises to be greater than 800 in 2019/20.
M1.11

10,000 safe and well visits carried out by 31st March 2020.

M1.12 Assistive technology utilisation increased to at least 3,650 service users in 2019/20.
M1.13 Increase over 65 year old persons independence at home by reducing residential admissions to long term
residential care ( in house and independent sector) in comparison to admissions in 2018/19.
M1.14 Work towards increasing Cumbria Care’s market share by 8-14% each financial year.

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2

People in cumbria
are well-connected and thriving

104
158
Serving the people of Cumbria

Connecting people and places is important to wellbeing and
thriving communities. Maintaining and improving our road
and rail infrastructure and transport services is important to
enable people to access work, learning and business
opportunities to fulfil their ambitions. Better digital
connections via online and mobile channels across the
county are needed now and will be even more vital in the
future. Social connections between people in communities
and between communities are maybe even more important
today. As the demands on existing public services increase
and budgets reduce, the ability of communities to design
and deliver their own solutions on their own or jointly with
organisations to meet their own particular needs will be
increasingly vital to creating thriving communities.

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

Supporting Outcome: The physical and digital infrastructure that people need to access services, learning, employment,
business and leisure will be in place
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

105
159

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.1

Continue to deliver improvements to our digital offer during 2019/20 including
delivery of priority projects in at least 4 areas - complaints, registrars, parking
services and waste.

By March 2020

AD - Customer and
Community Services

2.2

Through the Connecting Cumbria contract provide superfast broadband
infrastructure to 11,900 premises in the latest project by the end of 2019. We will
explore opportunities to build on this delivery through the opportunities presented
by the Borderlands programme.

By December 2019 AD - Economy and
Environment

2.3

Develop and submit business cases for key transport infrastructure investment
to harness opportunities for economic growth and sustainable housing growth
including improvements on the A595 and a Kendal Northern Access Route.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

2.4

Fully implement a new approach to highways safety inspections, and the change
in working practices to the mechanisms in which we deal with, and prioritise the
way in which we fix potholes.

By September 2019

AD - Highways and Transport

2.5

Work with key stakeholders including Sustrans / districts / Highways England /
National Park and local cycling groups to undertake a review of cycle strategy
across Cumbria. As part of this work an exercise will be undertaken to identify
locations where improvements to cycle infrastructure to support schools can be
delivered.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.6

Deliver pipeline of priority infrastructure schemes.

AD - Economy and
Environment

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

Supporting Outcome: Locally responsive services will be in place to meet the different needs of different communities
across Cumbria
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2018/19)

106
160

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.7

Develop a strategic overview of area planning projects. Engage with key
services on implementation. Develop detailed rolling plans for each area
including timelines.

By September
2019

AD - Customer and
Community Services

2.8

Explore further opportunities for collaboration with blue light partners for
improving our services. Work with partners to explore feasibility of developing
new blue light and community hubs across the county.

By December 2019 Asst Chief Fire Officer
AD - Customer and
Community Services

2.9

A refreshed County Council care and support commissioning strategy including
extra care housing - draft strategy to be produced.

By January 2020

AD - Strategic
Commissioning

2.10

Progression of Reablement and Rehabilitation integration with:
Phase 1a – the roll-out of a common rostering system in North Cumbria completed by June 2019
Phase 1b – a common referral pathway out of the hospital settings completion of alignment of processes and policies by March 2020.

By March 2020

AD - Integration and
Partnerships

2.11

To produce a Continuous Improvement Plan for Highways with a focus on innovation and improved ways of delivering services to highway users and managing
highways assets, with a balance between meeting the needs of highways users,
improving quality and reducing costs.

By October 2019

AD - Highways and
Transport

2.12

Deliver the Council’s Equalities Action Plan.

By March 2020

AD - Customer and
Community Services

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

Supporting Outcome: Locally responsive services will be in place to meet the different needs of different communities
across Cumbria
Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)

107
161

Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.13

Develop, pilot and implement alternative models of Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service delivery that are
more suitable to the risk, demand and geography of our county.

Asst Chief Fire Officer

2.14

Delivery of refreshed Care and Support Commissioning Strategy to continue to reshape Support at
Home Services ensuring a mixed market, including the Extra Care Market and Learning Disability
services. Intention to ensure new entrants into the market in future to improve quality and availability.

AD - Strategic
Commissioning

2.15

Undertake a review to deliver an improved All Age Disability service.

AD - Education and Skills

2.16

Reablement and rehabilitation integration, Phase 2 - alignment of workforce, delivered late 2020.

AD - Integration and
Partnerships

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

Supporting Outcome: Communities will be confident and have access to the support they need to design and deliver
the services they need
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.17

Progress area based work to develop ensuring engagement with the community
and voluntary sector and plans including initiation of work to deliver community
hubs in Barrow and Whitehaven that will support communities to thrive.

By January 2020

AD - Customer and
Community Services

2.18

To fully implement the agreed new ways of working with Parish Councils and
others to help develop localism and to broaden and increase levels of
volunteering in local highway service delivery.

By September
2019

AD - Highways and Transport

108
162

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.19

Continued development of Integrated Care Communities - integrated working at a local level between
Health, Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care and the community and voluntary sector.

AD - Integration and
Partnerships

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

Supporting Outcome: Children and young people will receive the best education possible
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.20

Refresh improvement plan following Local Area SEND inspection. Governance
of SEND partnership group to be realigned to Health & Wellbeing Board.

By June 2019

AD - Education and Skills

2.21

Further promotion and engagement of SEND Local Offer via social media,
direct contact, schools and settings to increase parents and carers accessing
the refreshed local offer online and developing additional metrics eg. Website
analytics along with qualitative feedback streams in place with user feedback
also incorporating Local Offer questions.

By October 2019

AD - Education and Skills

109
163

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

2.22

New model for Resource Provision to be implemented in September 2020.

AD - Education and Skills

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 2 Places

in cumbria are well-connected and thriving

How we will measure progress against this outcome in 2019/20
Pupil Outcomes (to be reported annually - August 2019)

110
164

M2.1

Early Years outcomes improved from 70.1% to be in line with the national level.

M2.2

The percentage of pupils in Key Stage 2, achieving the expected standard in Reading Writing and Mathematics
combined to show continued upward trend from 64.8% and to be at least in line with the national level.

M2.3

The percentage of pupils of pupils attaining GCSE 9-5 in English and Mathematics to increase from 43.3% and be
in line with or better than the national level.

M2.4

The overall Progress 8 score continues to improve from -0.11 and is at least in line with the national level.

M2.5

Outcomes for SEND (school support pupils) at Key Stage 2 achieving the expected standard in Reading Writing
and Mathematics to improve from 23.3% to be in line with national level.

M2.6

The proportion of 16-17 year olds Not in Employment, Education and Training to be 3.7% or lower for 2019/20.

M2.7

The ‘September Guarantee’ duty (where all young people aged 16 and 17 receive a suitable offer of learning) to
98% or higher for 2019/20.

M2.8

The participation in education, training and employment of 16-17 year olds to exceed 93% for 2019/20.

M2.9

The proportion of permanent exclusions reduced from 0.10%.

M2.10 The percentage of pupils attending an outstanding or good school increased to at least 87%.
M2.11 The percentage of outstanding or good schools increased to 92%.
M2.12 Maintain CQC ‘good’ ratings across all County Council provided regulated services whilst aspiring to achieve
outstanding.
M2.12 Maintenance of level 3 funding from Department of Transport.

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3

The economy in cumbria
is growing and benefits everyone
111
165
Serving the people of Cumbria

A growing and productive economy is important for the
county to thrive; however, just as important is that everyone
in Cumbria has the opportunity to benefit from economic
growth. This means that good quality education and learning
opportunities are open to all and people have access to the
support they need to maximise their potential. It also means
that everybody should have the opportunity to secure a
good job and businesses across Cumbria can be
successful. To achieve these things, the county needs to
attract investment to create new and good quality business
and employment opportunities, as well as new homes.

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3 The

economy in cumbria is growing and
benefits everyone

Supporting Outcome: Everybody will have access to learning opportunities throughout their life and career
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.1

Deliver a programme of Adult and Community Learning to 5,500 learners, in the
Cumbrian Community in 2019/20 and develop the curriculum.

By March 2020

AD - Education and Skills

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)

112
166

Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.2

Utilise the new flexibilities in the Council’s apprenticeship levy to use 25% of the levy with SMEs and
partner organisations to stimulate economic growth and opportunities for young people in Cumbria.

AD - Education and Skills

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3 The

economy in cumbria is growing and
benefits everyone

Supporting Outcome: Everybody will have access to good quality employment opportunities
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

113
167

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.3

Continue to encourage providers delivering services to and on behalf of the
council to pay the Living Wage Foundation’s Living Wage rate of pay to their
staff, and adopt the principles of the Great Jobs Agenda.

Ongoing

AD - Strategic
Commissioning

3.4

Improved routes into work for people including vulnerable adults, those with
SEND and Children Looked After. Deliver full-time study programmes to 15 High
Needs learners and 256 enrolments of SEND adults on Employability,
Independent Living Skills, Math and English courses.

By March 2020

AD - Education and Skills

3.5

Develop a ‘grow your own’ approach to address market issues, focussing for
2019/20 on:
• Developing Career Pathways, building on the Social Work Academy and
Apprenticeships, including a graduate programme, for a minimum of two
service areas by December 2019.

By December 2019 AD - Education and Skills

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.6

Develop an Academy approach to support and recruit care staff and develop our own staff to increase
recognition of care as a career.

AD - Provider Services

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3 The

economy in cumbria is growing and
benefits everyone

Supporting Outcome: The county will be an attractive place for businesses to invest, and local businesses will thrive
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.7

Support the Cumbria LEP to finalise and adopt the Local Industrial Strategy
during 2019/20.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

3.8

Work with the Borderlands partners to progress projects that support the
growth of the County.

3.9

Maximise developer led investment with Council responses to consultation
on local plans emphasising appropriate level of contribution to key services
and infrastructure, supporting the growth in affordable housing, and ensuring
housing options are available which are fit for all stages of life.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

3.10

Refresh the property asset management strategy identifying opportunities to
utilise our assets to maximise income, promote regeneration and support
communities to thrive.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

114
168

Ref

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.11

To take positive action to realise the social, environmental and economic opportunities from waste
management and emerging changes in national waste strategy.

AD - Economy and
Environment

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3 The

economy in cumbria is growing and
benefits everyone

Supporting Outcome: Everybody will be supported to achieve their aspirations
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.12

An all-age Carers Charter to support all carers to achieve their aspirations to be
developed and agreed by partners.

By October 2019

AD - Strategic
Commissioning

3.13

Deliver the annual contribution to the four-year (2017-21) public sector
apprenticeships target of 2.3% of the Council’s headcount of staff achieved.
145 for the Council, 106 for the County schools.

Ongoing

AD - Education and Skills

115
169

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

3.14

Further develop our school transport service to improve service and delivery savings, by considering
main stream home to school services, and to provide alternatives to high cost routes.

AD - Highways and Transport

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

Outcome 3 The

economy in cumbria is growing and
benefits everyone

How we will measure progress against this outcome

116
170

M3.1

An increase in employment rate of 16-64 year olds from 78.2.

M3.2

A reduction in Alternative Claimant Count rate from 3.2%.

M3.3

An increase in proportion of people in Cumbria with skill level 2 or above from 75% of 16-64 year olds.

M3.4

An increase in Apprenticeship starts delivered in Cumbria from 4,535 in 2017/18 (academic year).

M3.5

An increase in the number of offers of work experience made to Children Looked After within the Council.

M3.6

An increase in the percentage of Council commissioned spend with Cumbrian SMEs from 26%.

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

New ways of working and
achieving financial sustainability

117
171
Serving the people of Cumbria

We will be a Council that provides leadership, working
effectively with communities and partners, to reform and
integrate public services so that services are designed
around the customer; and organisational and structural
barriers are removed where possible. We will be a Council
that is enterprising and innovative, finding new ways to
generate income to support priority services and exploring
new ways of doing things. We will invest wisely on a
commercial basis and take advantage of commercial
opportunities where appropriate. We will be a Council that
offers high quality digital services which meet the needs
and expectations of our customers so that most of our
customers choose to access our services online.

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

New ways of working and achieving financial
sustainability
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)

118
172

Ref

Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

4.1

Continue to deliver the council’s Customer Strategy. A refreshed Customer
Strategy Delivery Plan to be agreed by Cabinet by June 2019.

By March 2020

AD - Customer and
Community Services

4.2

Deliver the actions in the 2019/20 Workforce Delivery Plan including maintain
or improve on the Better Health at Work Gold Award standard.

By March 2020

AD - Education and Skills
AD - Organisational Change

4.3

Produce and implement a system wide Workforce Strategy with North Cumbria
and South Cumbria Health and Care systems.

By March 2020

AD - Education and Skills
AD - Organisational Change

4.4

Deliver the actions in the 2019/20 ICT Plan Delivery Plan and further progress
ICT improvement programmes with key partners, particularly the NHS
and Police.

By March 2020

AD - Organisational Change

4.5

Progress Children and Families Development Plan to further embed Signs of
Safety to ensure practice and culture development. Amended plan completed
by end of June 2019, and to evidence more consistent practice at a ‘Good’
standard during 2019/20.

By January 2020

AD - Children and Families

4.6

Joint council and NHS commissioning strategy across areas of mutual interest
with a draft strategy produced.

By March 2020

AD - Strategic
Commissioning

4.7

All services delivered in line with their 2018/19 revenue budget as set by Council
in February 2019.

By March 2020

Director- Finance
Delivered by ELT

4.8

A total of £22.730 million of new savings delivered in 2019/20.

By March 2020

Director- Finance
Delivered by ELT

4.9

Respond to outcome of Fair Funding and Business Rates Retention consultation
determining impact on Council resources and future MTFP Planning.

By March 2020

Director- Finance

4.10

Respond to Inspections and External Peer Review findings, developing and
implementing action plans where appropriate.

By March 2020

Delivered by ELT

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

New ways of working and achieving financial
sustainability
Year 2 Actions and Milestones (2019/20)
Action

Milestone

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

4.11

Deliver the enterprise projects within the Medium Term Financial Plan for
2019/20.

By March 2020

Director - Finance/Executive
Director - Economy and
Infrastructure

4.12

Develop proposals for investment in renewable energy technology that could
provide sustainable revenue streams to the Council and also mitigate in part the
carbon emission footprint of the Council’s activities. Undertake initial feasibility
and options appraisal.

By March 2020

AD - Economy and
Environment

119
173

Ref

Actions Planned for Years 3-4 (2020-2022)
Ref

Action

4.13

During 2020/21 commence development and delivery of identified projects for investment in renewable AD - Economy and
energy technology that the initial feasibility has determined as priorities for environmental mitigation and Environment
revenue income.

4.14

Continue to deliver the customer strategy including the development and delivery of a plan for an
improved digital offer for high volume transactions.

AD - Customer and
Community Services

4.15

Work with local partners to support the ambitions of the NHS 10 Year Plan.

AD - Integration and
Partnerships

4.16

Consider the benefits of 5G and fibre technology to support council services and the wider community,
including Economic Growth.

AD Organisational Change
AD Customer and Community
AD Economy and
Infrastructure

4.17

Working with District Councils, begin preparations for Local Elections in May 2021.

Chief Legal Officer

Serving the people of Cumbria

Assistant Director(s)
Responsible for Delivery

cumbria.gov.uk

Council Plan Delivery Plan

Cumbria County Council

New ways of working and achieving financial
sustainability

How we will measure progress against this outcome in 2019/20

120
174

M4.1

Maintain the marginal costs of Externally Provided Workers (EPWs) below the March 2019 levels.

M4.2

A reduction in Sickness Absence to 10 days per WTE by March 2020.

M4.3

80% of corporate complaints dealt with satisfactorily at informal stage.

M4.4

90% of FOI and EIR requests dealt with within 20 day statutory timescale.

M4.5

75% of Subject Access Requests responded to within 1 calendar month in line with GDPR legislation.

Serving the people of Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Cumbria County Council

121
175
Serving the people of Cumbria

This page is intentionally left blank

122

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
1 APRIL 2020 - 31 MAY 2020
PUBLISHED ON 28 FEBRUARY 2020

123

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
Explanatory Note
The County Council is required to publish a Forward Plan of all key decisions to be taken
in the following two months. This Plan begins on 1 April 2020 and replaces the Plan
published on 31 January 2020. It will be updated monthly and will be available on the last
working day of each month. Previous versions of the Plan can also be found on the
Council’s website http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/council-democracy/councillors-democracyelections/decisions/forwardplan/2011.asp
The Forward Plan shows details of key decisions to be taken by the Council’s Executive
(ie the Leader of the Council and the Cabinet), Local Committees and by Officers under
their delegated powers. It also shows significant decisions to be taken by the Executive
which are not Key Decisions. The membership of the Executive and the Local
Committees is set out in Appendix 1 at the end of this document.
A key decision is one which is likely to be:(i)

Significant in terms of expenditure or savings if it relates to a matter which exceeds
£500,000 in value, except those decisions taken by:1.

the Chief Executive under delegated authority in connection with Treasury
Management;

2.

the Executive Director – People (Deputy Chief Executive) under delegated
authority in relation to care plans for individual children and young people or
adults;

3.

Executive Directors generally under delegated powers in relation to the
submission of or acceptance of tenders.

OR
(ii) Significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area
comprising two or more electoral divisions if it would change, or proposes
changes to, the way in which services are used or provided. Significant in this
context means important or far reaching. Examples would include proposals for
changing the character of a school, closing down or opening Council services,
and major changes in transport arrangements affecting an area. This is not an
exhaustive list, and in considering whether a decision is a ‘key decision’ for the
purposes of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the Council seeks to apply
the principle that the public in the area affected should not be taken by surprise
by the proposed decision.

124

The Plan shows:when these decisions will be made
who will make the decision
to whom representations can be made and how
what arrangements are proposed to consult the public and stakeholders about the
decisions
what documents relating to those decisions will be available and when.
Once they are available copies of documents referred to in the Plan may be obtained on
the Internet, or by e-mail democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk. A report to the decision
maker will be available one week before the Meeting. If any documents are available
before that period then that will be specified. However, in a small number of cases it may
not be possible to make available certain documents as they contain confidential
information.
The Plan is available free of charge on request from Daniel Hamilton (07920 700299). It
will also be available for inspection at Cumbria House, Carlisle and County Offices, Kendal
from 9.00 am to 5.00 pm Mondays to Thursdays and 9.00 am to 4.30 pm on Fridays and
on the County Council’s website
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?bcr=1&RPId=117 , as well as at all
the libraries in the County.

MR STEWART YOUNG
Leader of the Council

125

FORWARD PLAN
1 APRIL 2020 - 31 MAY 2020
INDEX OF CONTENTS

Subject

1. Solway Coast Area
of Outstanding
Natural Beauty –
Management Plan

126

To adopt the Management
Plan for the period 2020 –
2025 that has been
reviewed and finalised by
the Solway Coast AONB
Partnership.

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Consultation

Representations
to
Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair
Cabinet Member for
Environment

Relevant Scrutiny
Board
Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)
Public

Subject

2. Award of Property
Maintenance Minor
Works Framework
2020-24

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Consultation

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Economic
Development and
Property

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Highways and
Transport

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public

127

To award a multi-supplier
framework to establish an
external supply chain and
deliver low value
maintenance schemes for
schools and corporate
property. The estimated
framework spend is circa
£3m per year and the term
is an initial period of 2
years with two possible 1
year extensions.

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

3. Winter Service
Review 2019/20

To approve the proposed
Winter Service routes to
be included in the Winter
Policy document for
2020/2025.

Consultation
with Parish and
Town Councils

Subject

4. Cumbria’s
Highways Asset
Management
Strategy 2020 to
2025

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Consultation

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Highways and
Transport

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public

Dawn Roberts,
Executive
Director Corporate,
Customer and
Community
Services
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Public Health and
Community Services

Scrutiny Advisory
Board – Adults

Public

128

The refreshed strategy
updates the council’s
existing strategy and will
detail how the council will
manage the council's
highways network, adapt
the service to respond to a
changing climate, and
initiatives to support
improving customer
experience.

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

5. Global Resettlement
Scheme

To decide on the future
arrangements for the
Global Resettlement
Scheme, including the
proposal for the Council to
act as the lead authority
for Cumbria.

Engagement
with Cumbria
Leadership
Board, 4
October 2019.
Engagement
with each
District Council,
November and
December
2019.

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place
Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Children
and Young People

Subject

6. Proposed Change
of Age Range at
Wigton Infant
School

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Relevant
stakeholders
including:Parents, staff
and governors,
Surrounding
schools and
nurseries,
Parish and
District Council.

John Readman,
Executive
Director - People
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Schools and Learning

Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Children
and Young People

Public

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Relevant
stakeholders
including:Parents, staff
and governors,
Surrounding
schools and
nurseries,
Parish and
District Council

John Readman,
Executive
Director - People
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Schools and Learning

Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Children
and Young People

Public

129

To change the age range
at Wigton Infant School
from 4 to 7, to 2 to 7 years
of age to establish a
maintained nursery
provision in replacement
for closing Voluntary
Management led preschool on school site.
7. Consultation on the
Potential Closure of
Bram Longstaffe
Nursery School

To consider the results of
the consultation, and to
decide whether or not to
publish statutory notices
about the proposed
change.

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Type of
Decision

Consultation

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

Subject

8. Council Plan
Delivery Plan
2020/21

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Non Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

To approve the Council
Plan Delivery Plan
2020/21 which sets out the
key activities and
measures to be
undertaken to contribute to
the achievement of the
outcomes set out in the
Council Plan 2018-2022

130

9. Implementation of
the Radiation
(Emergency
Preparedness and
Public Information)
Regulations 2019
[REPPIR 2019]

To provide an update on
the transition to the new
legislation REPPIR 2019,
noting the progress made
towards the full
implementation by 20th
May 2020.

Consultation

Public
consultation on
proposed
strategic
principles and
outcomes to
inform the
development of
the Council Plan
2018-2022 and
its delivery took
place between
23 November
2017 and 8
January 2018.

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Julie Crellin,
Director of
Finance (Section
151 Officer)
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Leader of the Council

Scrutiny
Management
Board

Public

Steve Healey,
Chief Fire Officer
Cumbria Fire HQ,
Carleton Avenue,
Penrith
CA10 2FA

Cabinet Member for
Customers,
Transformation and
Fire and Rescue

Scrutiny Advisory
Board –
Communities and
Place

Public

Subject

10. Carlisle Southern
Link Road –
Compulsory
Purchase Order
(CPO) and Side
Roads Order (SRO)

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Cabinet
on
23 Apr 2020

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Highways and
Transport

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public

Key
Decision

Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Not before
1 Apr 2020

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Health and Care
Services

Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Adults

Public

131

To seek approval for the
acquisition of land by
agreement and the making
of Compulsory Purchase
and Side Roads Orders for
the Carlisle Southern Link
Road (CSLR).
11. Award of Contract Parkside EPH
Refurbishment

To provide a capital
investment of £900,000 to
address the works
identified in the corporate
condition survey 2017.
The works also include
improving the existing
facilities such as creation
of larger bedrooms and
in/out laundry facilities to
adhere to infection control
standards.

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Type of
Decision

Consultation

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

Who will take
Decision

12. Award of Verge of
Maintenance and
Arboriculture
Framework 2020-24
The verge maintenance and
arboriculture framework is
required to establish an
external supply chain to
deliver planned and reactive
verge maintenance and tree
works.

Key
Decision

Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Not before
1 Apr 2020

Angela Jones,
Executive
Director Economy and
Infrastructure
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Cabinet Member for
Highways and
Transport

Scrutiny Advisory
Board Communities and
Place

Public

13. Award of Contract Supply and
Distribution of
Stationery and ICT
Consumables

Key
Decision

Executive
Director Corporate,
Customer and
Community
Services
Not before
1 Apr 2020

Dawn Roberts,
Executive
Director Corporate,
Customer and
Community
Services
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for
Finance

Scrutiny
Management
Board

Public

132

Award of a contract for the
Supply and Distribution of
Stationery and ICT
Consumables. The tender
exercise is being carried
out via a Mini Competition
from a National
Framework.

The commencement date
will be 1st June 2020 and
the contract will be for a 4
year period.

Consultation

Relevant
Scrutiny Board

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)

Type of
Decision

Subject

Representations
to

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair

Subject

14. Award of
Framework for the
Provision of Payroll
and HR
Administration
Services to NonCheque Book
Maintained Schools

133

Following a tender and
evaluation process a
contract award decision
will be required to allow
the establishment of a
Framework contract
(multiple suppliers) for the
Provision of Payroll and
HR Administration
Services to Non-Cheque
Book Maintained Schools.

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Executive
Director Corporate,
Customer and
Community
Services
Not before
1 Apr 2020

Consultation

Schools Forum
Consultation to
take place after
the supplier
engagement
session

Representations
to
Dawn Roberts,
Executive
Director Corporate,
Customer and
Community
Services
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate,
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair
Cabinet Member for
Schools and
Learning, Deputy
Leader and Cabinet
Member for Finance

Relevant
Scrutiny Board
Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Children
and Young People

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)
Public

Subject

15. Award of Contract Service and Repair
of Specialised
Equipment

134

The contract enables the
Council to meet its
regulatory requirements in
relation to the servicing
and repair of lifts and
hoists as specified in the
Lifting and Lowering
Equipment Regulations
(LOLER 1998) and
Provision and Use of Work
Equipment Regulations
(PUWER 1998).

This relates to equipment
provided through the
Council’s Community
Equipment Service and
equipment operated by the
in-house provider Cumbria
Care.

Type of
Decision

Who will take
Decision

Key
Decision

Executive
Director – People
Not before
1 Apr 2020

Consultation

Representations
to
John Readman,
Executive
Director - People
Cumbria House,
117 Botchergate
Carlisle CA1 1RD

Relevant Cabinet
Portfolio/Local
Committee Chair
Cabinet Member for
Health and Care
Services

Relevant
Scrutiny Board
Scrutiny Advisory
Board - Adults

Public
(Part 1)
or
Private
(Part 2)
Public

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

135

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

137

This page is intentionally left blank

